
�
�

v1�2014�

AGENDA��
�

Meeting� Transport�Committee�

Date� Wednesday�12�November�2014�

Time� 10.00�am�

Place� Chamber,�City�Hall,�The�Queen's�
Walk,�London,�SE1�2AA�

Copies�of�the�reports�and�any�attachments�may�be�found�at��
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/transport��
�
Most�meetings�of�the�London�Assembly�and�its�Committees�are�webcast�live�at�
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts�where�you�can�also�view�past�
meetings.�
�
Members�of�the�Committee�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM�(Chair)�
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
Victoria�Borwick�AM�
Tom�Copley�AM�
Darren�Johnson�AM�

Steve�O'Connell�AM�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM�
Navin�Shah�AM�
Richard�Tracey�AM�

�

A�meeting�of�the�Committee�has�been�called�by�the�Chairman�of�the�Committee�to�deal�with�the�

business�listed�below.��
Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Tuesday�4�November�2014�
�
Further�Information�
If�you�have�questions,�would�like�further�information�about�the�meeting�or�require�special�facilities�
please�contact:�Dale�Langford,�Principal�Committee�Manager;�Telephone:�020�7983�4415;�Email:�
dale.langford@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4458�
�
For�media�enquiries�please�contact�Alison�Bell,�Communications�Adviser;�Telephone:�020�7983�4228;�
Email:�alison.bell@london.gov.uk.��If�you�have�any�questions�about�individual�items�please�contact�the�
author�whose�details�are�at�the�end�of�the�report.��
�
This�meeting�will�be�open�to�the�public,�except�for�where�exempt�information�is�being�discussed�as�
noted�on�the�agenda.��A�guide�for�the�press�and�public�on�attending�and�reporting�meetings�of�local�
government�bodies,�including�the�use�of�film,�photography,�social�media�and�other�means�is�available�
at�www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.��
�
There�is�access�for�disabled�people,�and�induction�loops�are�available.��There�is�limited�underground�
parking�for�orange�and�blue�badge�holders,�which�will�be�allocated�on�a�first-come�first-served�basis.��
Please�contact�Facilities�Management�on�020�7983�4750�in�advance�if�you�require�a�parking�space�or�
further�information.�



�

�
Certificate�Number:�FS�80233�

If�you,�or�someone�you�know,�needs�a�copy�of�the�agenda,�minutes�or�reports�
in�large�print�or�Braille,�audio,�or�in�another�language,�then�please�call�us�on�
020�7983�4100�or�email�assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.���
�

�
�



�

3�
�

Agenda�
Transport�Committee�
Wednesday�12�November�2014�
�
�

1 Apologies�for�Absence�and�Chair's�Announcements��
�
� To�receive�any�apologies�for�absence�and�any�announcements�from�the�Chair.��

�
�

2 Declarations�of�Interests�(Pages�1�-�4)�
�
� The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�
(a)� Note�the�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members,�as�set�out�in�the�table�at�

Agenda�Item�2,�as�disclosable�pecuniary�interests;��
�
(b)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�disclosable�pecuniary�interests�

in�specific�items�listed�on�the�agenda�and�the�necessary�action�taken�by�the�
Member(s)�regarding�withdrawal�following�such�declaration(s);�and��

�
(c)�� Note�the�declaration�by�any�Member(s)�of�any�other�interests�deemed�to�be�

relevant�(including�any�interests�arising�from�gifts�and�hospitality�received�
which�are�not�at�the�time�of�the�meeting�reflected�on�the�Authority’s�register�
of�gifts�and�hospitality,�and�noting�also�the�advice�from�the�GLA’s�
Monitoring�Officer�set�out�at�Agenda�Item�2)�and�to�note�any�necessary�
action�taken�by�the�Member(s)�following�such�declaration(s).�

�
�

3 Minutes�(Pages�5�-�50)�
�
� The�Committee�is�recommended�to�confirm�the�minutes�of�the�meeting�of�the�

Transport�Committee�held�on�14�October�2014�to�be�signed�by�the�Chair�as�a�correct�
record.��
�

� The�appendices�to�the�minutes�set�out�on�pages�11�to�49�are�attached�for�Members�and�
officers�only�but�are�available�from�the�following�area�of�the�GLA’s�website:�
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/transport�
�
�

4 Summary�List�of�Actions�(Pages�51�-�54)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact�Dale�Langford,�dale.langford@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�4415�

� �
The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�the�completed�and�outstanding�actions�

arising�from�previous�meetings�of�the�Committee.�
�
�



�

4�
�

5 Action�Taken�Under�Delegated�Authority�(Pages�55�-�62)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�

Contact:�Dale�Langford;�dale.langford@london.gov.uk;�020�7983�4415�
�
The�Committee�is�recommended�to�note�the�action�taken�by�the�Chair�under�
delegated�authority,�namely�to�agree,�in�consultation�with�party�Group�Lead�
Members,�responses�to�consultations�on�the�Transport�Select�Committee�Inquiry�
into�small�airports,�London�Airspace�Management�Programme�and�London�
Overground�extension�to�Barking�Riverside.�
�
�

6 Door-to-door�Transport�Services�(Pages�63�-�64)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat��

Richard�Berry,�richard.berry@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�4199�
�
The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�
�
(a)� Note�the�report,�put�questions�on�door-to-door�transport�services�to�the�

invited�guests�and�note�the�discussion;�and�
��
(b)� Delegate�authority�to�the�Chair,�in�consultation�with�the�party�Group�Lead�

Members,�to�agree�the�Committee’s�output�from�its�work�on�door-to-door�
transport.�

�
�

7 Transport�Committee�Work�Programme�(Pages�65�-�68)�
�
� Report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat��

Contact:�Richard�Berry,�richard.berry@london.gov.uk,�020�7983�4199�

�

The�Committee�is�recommended�to:�

�

(a) Note�its�work�programme�for�2014/15,�as�set�out�in�the�report;�and�

�

(b) Delegate�authority�to�the�Chair�to�agree,�in�consultation�with�party�Group�

Lead�Members,�a�response�to�Network�Rail’s�consultation�on�the�draft�South�

East�Route:�Sussex�Area�Route�Study.�
�
�

8 Date�of�Next�Meeting��
�
� The�next�meeting�of�the�Committee�is�scheduled�for�Wednesday�10�December�2014�at�

10.00am�in�the�Chamber.�
�
�

9 Any�Other�Business�the�Chair�Considers�Urgent��
�



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk
 
 v3/2014�

 

Subject:�Declarations
of
Interests�


Report
to:
 Transport
Committee



Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
12
November
2014�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public

 





1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�details�of�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�for�noting�as�disclosable�pecuniary�

interests�and�requires�additional�relevant�declarations�relating�to�disclosable�pecuniary�interests,�and�

gifts�and�hospitality�to�be�made.�




2.
 Recommendations
�


2.1 That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
below,
be
noted


as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests1;


2.2 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
disclosable
pecuniary
interests
in
specific

items
listed
on
the
agenda
and
the
necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
regarding


withdrawal
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted;
and


2.3 That
the
declaration
by
any
Member(s)
of
any
other
interests
deemed
to
be
relevant

(including
any
interests
arising
from
gifts
and
hospitality
received
which
are
not
at
the


time
of
the
meeting
reflected
on
the
Authority’s
register
of
gifts
and
hospitality,
and


noting
also
the
advice
from
the
GLA’s
Monitoring
Officer
set
out
at
below)
and
any

necessary
action
taken
by
the
Member(s)
following
such
declaration(s)
be
noted.




3.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
3.1 Relevant�offices�held�by�Assembly�Members�are�listed�in�the�table�overleaf:�

                                                 
1�The�Monitoring�Officer�advises�that: Paragraph�10�of�the�Code�of�Conduct�will�only�preclude�a�Member�from�
participating�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�or�being�considered�at,�for�example,�a�meeting�of�the�Assembly,�
where�the�Member�has�a�direct�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�that�particular�matter.�The�effect�of�this�is�
that�the�‘matter�to�be�considered,�or�being�considered’�must�be�about�the�Member’s�interest.�So,�by�way�of�
example,�if�an�Assembly�Member�is�also�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X,�that�Assembly�Member�will�be�
precluded�from�participating�in�an�Assembly�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�the�
Member’s�role�/�employment�as�a�councillor�of�London�Borough�X;�the�Member�will�not�be�precluded�from�
participating�in�a�meeting�where�the�Assembly�is�to�consider�a�matter�about�an�activity�or�decision�of�London�
Borough�X. 

�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



        

�
 

Member
 Interest

Tony�Arbour�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Jennette�Arnold�OBE�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions��
Gareth�Bacon�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Bexley�
John�Biggs�AM� �
Andrew�Boff�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Victoria�Borwick�AM� Member,�Royal�Borough�of�Kensington�&�Chelsea;��

Deputy�Mayor�
James�Cleverly�AM� Chairman�of�LFEPA;�Chairman�of�the�London�Local�

Resilience�Forum;�substitute�member,�Local�Government�
Association�Fire�Services�Management�Committee�

Tom�Copley�AM� �
Andrew�Dismore�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Len�Duvall�AM� �
Roger�Evans�AM� Committee�of�the�Regions;�Trust�for�London�(Trustee)�
Nicky�Gavron�AM� �
Darren�Johnson�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Jenny�Jones�AM� Member,�House�of�Lords�
Stephen�Knight�AM� Member,�LFEPA;�Member,�LB�Richmond�
Kit�Malthouse�AM� Deputy�Mayor�for�Business�and�Enterprise;�Deputy�Chair,�

London�Enterprise�Panel;�Chair,�Hydrogen�London;�
Chairman,�London�&�Partners;�Board�Member,�TheCityUK���

Joanne�McCartney�AM� �
Steve�O’Connell�AM� Member,�LB�Croydon;�MOPAC�Non-Executive�Adviser�for�

Neighbourhoods�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM� �
Murad�Qureshi�AM� Congress�of�Local�and�Regional�Authorities�(Council�of�

Europe)�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM� �
Navin�Shah�AM� �
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM� Member,�LFEPA�
Richard�Tracey�AM� Chairman�of�the�London�Waste�and�Recycling�Board;�

Mayor's�Ambassador�for�River�Transport������
Fiona�Twycross�AM� Member,�LFEPA�

 

[Note:�LB�-�London�Borough;�LFEPA�-�London�Fire�and�Emergency�Planning�Authority;��
MOPAC�–�Mayor’s�Office�for�Policing�and�Crime]�

�
3.2 Paragraph�10�of�the�GLA’s�Code�of�Conduct,�which�reflects�the�relevant�provisions�of�the�Localism�

Act�2011,�provides�that:��
�

- where�an�Assembly�Member�has�a�Disclosable�Pecuniary�Interest�in�any�matter�to�be�considered�
or�being�considered�or�at��

�

(i)� a�meeting�of�the�Assembly�and�any�of�its�committees�or�sub-committees;�or��
�

(ii)� any�formal�meeting�held�by�the�Mayor�in�connection�with�the�exercise�of�the�Authority’s�
functions��

�

- they�must�disclose�that�interest�to�the�meeting�(or,�if�it�is�a�sensitive�interest,�disclose�the�fact�
that�they�have�a�sensitive�interest�to�the�meeting);�and��

�

Page 2



        

-� must�not�(i)�participate,�or�participate�any�further,�in�any�discussion�of�the�matter�at�the�
meeting;�or�(ii)�participate�in�any�vote,�or�further�vote,�taken�on�the�matter�at�the�meeting�

�

UNLESS�
�

-� they�have�obtained�a�dispensation�from�the�GLA’s�Monitoring�Officer�(in�accordance�with�
section�2�of�the�Procedure�for�registration�and�declarations�of�interests,�gifts�and�hospitality�–�
Appendix�5�to�the�Code).����

�

3.3 Failure�to�comply�with�the�above�requirements,�without�reasonable�excuse,�is�a�criminal�offence;�as�is�

knowingly�or�recklessly�providing�information�about�your�interests�that�is�false�or�misleading.�

3.4 In�addition,�the�Monitoring�Officer�has�advised�Assembly�Members�to�continue�to�apply�the�test�that�
was�previously�applied�to�help�determine�whether�a�pecuniary�/�prejudicial�interest�was�arising�-�

namely,�that�Members�rely�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�whether�a�member�of�the�public,�with�

knowledge�of�the�relevant�facts,�could,�with�justification,�regard�the�matter�as�so�significant�that�it�
would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.��

3.5 Members�should�then�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�in�view�of�their�interests�and�

the�interests�of�others�close�to�them,�they�should�participate�in�any�given�discussions�and/or�
decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�It�remains�the�responsibility�of�individual�Members�to�

make�further�declarations�about�their�actual�or�apparent�interests�at�formal�meetings�noting�also�

that�a�Member’s�failure�to�disclose�relevant�interest(s)�has�become�a�potential�criminal�offence.�

3.6 Members�are�also�required,�where�considering�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�

from�whom�they�have�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25�within�the�

previous�three�years�or�from�the�date�of�election�to�the�London�Assembly,�whichever�is�the�later,�to�
disclose�the�existence�and�nature�of�that�interest�at�any�meeting�of�the�Authority�which�they�attend�

at�which�that�business�is�considered.��

3.7 The�obligation�to�declare�any�gift�or�hospitality�at�a�meeting�is�discharged,�subject�to�the�proviso�set�
out�below,�by�registering�gifts�and�hospitality�received�on�the�Authority’s�on-line�database.�The�on-

line�database�may�be�viewed�here:��

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.��

3.8 If�any�gift�or�hospitality�received�by�a�Member�is�not�set�out�on�the�on-line�database�at�the�time�of�

the�meeting,�and�under�consideration�is�a�matter�which�relates�to�or�is�likely�to�affect�a�person�from�

whom�a�Member�has�received�a�gift�or�hospitality�with�an�estimated�value�of�at�least�£25,�Members�
are�asked�to�disclose�these�at�the�meeting,�either�at�the�declarations�of�interest�agenda�item�or�when�

the�interest�becomes�apparent.��

3.9 It�is�for�Members�to�decide,�in�light�of�the�particular�circumstances,�whether�their�receipt�of�a�gift�or�
hospitality,�could,�on�a�reasonable�estimation�of�a�member�of�the�public�with�knowledge�of�the�

relevant�facts,�with�justification,�be�regarded�as�so�significant�that�it�would�be�likely�to�prejudice�the�

Member’s�judgement�of�the�public�interest.�Where�receipt�of�a�gift�or�hospitality�could�be�so�
regarded,�the�Member�must�exercise�their�judgement�as�to�whether�or�not,�they�should�participate�in�

any�given�discussions�and/or�decisions�business�of�within�and�by�the�GLA.�

�

4.
 Legal
Implications



4.1 The�legal�implications�are�as�set�out�in�the�body�of�this�report.�




Page 3



        

5.
 Financial
Implications

�

5.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�directly�from�this�report.�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� Dale�Langford,�Principal�Committee�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4415�
E-mail:� Dale.Langford@london.gov.uk�

�

Page 4



������������������������������������������������������������������� �� �

�

�
�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


�

MINUTES


�

Meeting:
 Transport
Committee

Date:
 Tuesday
14
October
2014

Time:
 10.00
am

Place:
 Chamber,
City
Hall,
The
Queen's


Walk,
London,
SE1
2AA

�
Copies�of�the�minutes�may�be�found�at:


http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/transport�




�
Present:

�
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM�(Chair)�
Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM�(Deputy�Chair)�
Victoria�Borwick�AM�
Tom�Copley�AM�
Darren�Johnson�AM�
Steve�O'Connell�AM�
Dr�Onkar�Sahota�AM�
Navin�Shah�AM�
Richard�Tracey�AM�
�
�

1 Apologies
for
Absence
and
Chair's
Announcements
(Item
1)�



1.1� There�were�no�apologies�for�absence.��





2 Declarations
of
Interests
(Item
2)�




2.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

��

2.2� Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM�declared�that�she�had�had�lunch�with�Sir�Peter�Hendy�CBE,�

Commissioner�of�Transport.��As�it�had�not�at�the�time�been�included�in�the�Authority’s�

Register�of�Gifts�and�Hospitality�Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM�declared�that�she�had�attended�a�

dinner�hosted�by�the�City�of�London�Corporation�at�the�Liberal�Democrats�conference.� 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



Greater
London
Authority

Transport
Committee


Tuesday
14
October
2014


�

�
�




2.3
 Resolved:


(a) That
the
list
of
offices
held
by
Assembly
Members,
as
set
out
in
the
table
at


Agenda
Item
2,
be
noted
as
disclosable
pecuniary
interests;
and�

(b) That
Valerie
Shawcross
CBE
AM’s
and
Caroline
Pidgeon
MBE
AM’s
additional


declarations
of
hospitality
also
be
noted.







3 Minutes
(Item
3)�




3.1� Resolved:





That
the
minutes
of
the
meeting
of
the
Transport
Committee
held
on
2
September


2014
be
signed
by
the
Chair
as
a
correct
record.







4 Summary
List
of
Actions
(Item
4)�




4.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

4.2� Resolved:





That
the
completed
and
outstanding
actions
arising
from
previous
meetings
of
the


Committee
be
noted.






5 Action
Taken
Under
Delegated
Authority
(Item
5)�




5.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat,�which�set�out�for�

noting�action�taken�by�the�Chair�under�delegated�authority,�namely�agreeing�the�responses�

to�Transport�for�London�consultations�on�new�river�crossings�in�east�London�and�the�Safer�

Lorries�Scheme.�

�

5.2� Resolved:






 That
the
action
taken
by
the
Chair
under
delegated
authority
be
noted.





5.3� In�accordance�with�Standing�Order�2.2D�the�Chair�took�the�remaining�items�in�a�different�

order�from�that�set�out�on�the�agenda.�








Page 6



Greater
London
Authority

Transport
Committee


Tuesday
14
October
2014


�

�
�

6 London
TravelWatch
Budget
and
Business
Plan
(Item
7)�



6.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.�

�

6.2� Mark�Roberts,�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat,�was�in�attendance�for�this�item�and�explained�

that�the�report�was�the�Transport�Committee’s�formal�submission�to�the�GLA�Oversight�

Committee�for�consideration�as�part�of�its�2015/16�Budget�process.��The�Committee�noted�

that,�unlike�the�2014/15�budget�for�London�TravelWatch,�the�proposed�savings�in�2015/16�

did�not�include�the�use�of�reserves.�

�

6.3� Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM�expressed�satisfaction�with�the�work�of�London�TravelWatch�and�

the�efficient�way�that�savings�were�being�implemented.�

�

6.4� Resolved:





That
London
TravelWatch’s
proposed
budget
and
business
plan
for
the
next


financial
year
be
agreed.






7 Transport
Committee
Work
Programme
(Item
8)�




7.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat.��

�

7.2� Resolved:





(a)
 That
the
work
programme
for
2014/15,
set
out
in
the
report,
be
noted;





(b)
 That
the
recent
developments
with
cycling
projects
in
London,
as
set
out
in


paragraphs
4.8
to
4.10
of
the
report,
be
noted;





(c)
 That
the
record
of
the
site
visit
for
the
taxi
and
private
hire
investigation
be


noted;





(d)
 That
the
letter
received
from
Transport
for
London
responding
to
the


Committee’s
response
to
the
consultation
on
the
draft
Cycle
Safety
Action


Plan
be
noted;
and





(e)
 That
authority
be
delegated
to
the
Chair
to
agree,
in
consultation
with
Party


Group
Lead
Members,
responses
to
Transport
for
London
consultations
on


Cycle
Superhighways,
the
proposed
extension
of
London
Overground
to


Barking
Riverside
and
the
proposed
Bakerloo
line
extension.









Page 7



Greater
London
Authority

Transport
Committee


Tuesday
14
October
2014


�

�
�

8 Date
of
Next
Meeting
(Item
9)�



8.1� The�next�meeting�of�the�Committee�was�scheduled�for�Wednesday�12�November�2014�at�

10.00am�in�the�Chamber,�City�Hall.�





9 Any
Other
Business
the
Chair
Considers
Urgent
(Item
10)�



9.1� The�Chair�passed�on�the�Committee’s�thanks�to�Laura�Warren,�Scrutiny�Manager,�on�the�

occasion�of�her�last�meeting�of�the�Committee,�for�her�exceptional�work�over�several�years�
and�wished�her�all�the�best�in�her�new�role.�

�
9.2� At�10.04am�the�meeting�was�adjourned�until�the�arrival�of�the�first�guest�for�the�discussion�

on�the�Mayor’s�Infrastructure�Plan�2050.��The�meeting�resumed�at�10.05am.�





10 Mayor's
London
Infrastructure
Plan
2050
(Item
6)�




10.1� The�Committee�received�the�report�of�the�Executive�Director�of�Secretariat�as�background�to�

putting�questions�on�cycling�infrastructure,�particularly�proposals�for�new�Cycle�

Superhighways,�to�Andrew�Gilligan,�the�Mayor’s�Cycling�Commissioner.��

�

10.2� A�transcript�of�the�discussion�is�attached�at�Appendix
1.�

�

10.3� During�the�course�of�the�discussion,�the�Committee�requested�the�following�additional�

information�in�writing:�

• Details�of�the�funding�that�the�Mini-Holland�runner-up�boroughs�will�receive�to�improve�

cycling�in�their�localities;�and�

• Details�of�the�wider�plan�to�develop�cycling�across�all�London�boroughs.�
�
10.4� The�following�guests�attended�the�second�half�of�the�session�on�the�Mayor’s�London�

Infrastructure�Plan�2050:�

• Michèle�Dix,�Managing�Director,�Planning,�Transport�for�London�(TfL);�

• Ian�Brown�CBE,�Non-Executive�Director,�Crossrail�Ltd;�

• Alastair�Willis,�Commercial�Manager,�Abellio�London;�

• Joanne�Dodds,�Technical�Director,�Intelligent�Transport�Systems;�and�

• Dr� Stephen� Marshall,� Reader� in� Urban� Morphology� and� Planning,� Bartlett� School� of�

Planning,�University�College�London.�

�

10.5� A�transcript�of�the�discussion�is�attached�at�Appendix
2.�

�

�

Page 8



Greater
London
Authority

Transport
Committee


Tuesday
14
October
2014


�

�
�

10.6� During�the�course�of�the�discussion�the�Committee�noted�that�the�Managing�Director,�

Planning�for�TfL�would�confirm�whether�TfL’s�Transport�Innovation�Fund�submissions�on�road�

pricing�models�from�2006/07�were�available�in�the�public�domain.�

�

10.7� Resolved:






 That
the
report
and
discussions
be
noted.







11 Close
of
Meeting
�




11.1� The�meeting�ended�at�12.22pm.�





�
�
�
�
� � � �
Chair�� � Date�
�
Contact
Officer:
 Dale�Langford,�Principal�Committee�Manager;�Telephone:�020�7983�4415;�

Email:�dale.langford@london.gov.uk;�Minicom:�020�7983�4458�
�

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix 1 
Transport	Committee	–	14	October	2014	

	
Transcript	of	Item	6	–	Mayor’s	London	Infrastructure	Plan	2050	

�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Welcome,�Andrew�Gilligan.��Thank�you�very�much�for�joining�us�this�

morning�to�talk�about�current�cycling�infrastructure,�projects�and�recent�developments.��Whilst�you�are�getting�

your�bits�together,�could�I�kick�off?�

�

We�have�had�lots�of�noise,�I�guess,�around�the�issue�of�the�North-South,�East-West�Cycle�Superhighways.��

Some�people�are�concerned�they�are�going�to�have�an�impact�on�pedestrians,�motorists,�and�businesses.��Many�

think�actually�this�is�very�radical�but�it�is�the�way�forward�to�make�London�a�cycling�city.��What�is�your�response�

to�some�of�those�criticisms�and�the�noise�around�this?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Well,�it�is�a�big�deal�by�cycling�standards�but�it�is�not�a�

particularly�big�deal�by�most�other�standards.��There�are�about�1,450�miles�of�main�road�in�London,�that�is�the�

Transport�for�London�Road�Network�(TLRN)�the�Strategic�Road�Network�(SRN)�and�the�Borough�Principal�

Road�Network�(BPRN).��Of�those�1,450�miles,�the�two�schemes�plus�the�upgrade�of�Cycle�Superhighway�2�

(CS2)�represent�about�nine�miles.��There�is�an�alternative�measure,�lane�miles;�one�mile�of�a�two-lane�road�is�

two�lane�miles,�one�mile�of�a�four-lane�road�is�four�lane�miles.��Just�the�TLRN,�not�the�SRN�or�the�BPRN�is�

1,600�lane�miles.��Of�those�the�Cycle�Superhighway�is�going�to�take,�again,�nine�lane�miles.�

�

By�comparison�with�some�of�the�other�things�we�have�done�it�is�not�particularly�huge.��It�pales�by�comparison,�

for�instance,�with�the�installation�of�new�bus�lanes,�under�BusPlus�in�2002/03.��One�hundred�extra�bus�lanes,�

300�extra�junctions�with�bus�priority,�400�kilometres�of�route�in�total.��The�only�way,�interestingly,�it�does�not�

pale�by�comparison�with�BusPlus�is�the�amount�of�capacity�created.��BusPlus�created�capacity�for�10,000�extra�

users�in�the�busiest�hour�and�these�three�cycle�routes�on�their�own�will�create�the�capacity�for�9,000�every�

hour,�obviously�in�the�smaller�areas.�

�

That�is�the�beauty�of�cycling;�it�creates�a�huge�amount�of�transport�capacity�for�not�very�much�money.��Three�

thousand�cyclists�an�hour,�for�instance,�is�the�equivalent�of�running�41�extra�full�buses�every�hour.��On�the�

North-South�Cycle�Superhighway,�which�the�63�bus�parallels,�that�is�going�to�create�a�capacity�for�an�extra�

3,000�cyclists�an�hour�and�that�is�the�equivalent�of�41�extra�buses�on�that�route.�

�

We�have�ever�growing�demand�for�transport�in�central�London.��The�population�is�rising�by�about�100,000�a�

year.��We�are�pretty�close�to�the�limit�of�what�we�can�do�with�meeting�that�demand.��With�some�traditional�

means,�such�as�buses,�we�cannot�physically�get�many�more�buses�on�some�streets�in�central�London,�and�

indeed�in�places�like�Oxford�Street�the�pressure�is�to�take�buses�away,�not�put�more�in.��That�is�the�kind�of�

overall�strategic�answer�to�why�we�are�doing�what�we�are�doing.��We�have�managed�to�come�up�with�a�scheme�

here�that�creates�huge�amounts�of�transport�capacity�and�also�has�significant�benefits�for�other�users.��Where�

there�are�impacts�on�other�users,�with�a�few�exceptions,�and�I�do�stress�there�are�exceptions,�they�are�generally�

modest.��That�is�because�the�routes�have�been�deliberately�chosen�to�minimise�disbenefits�for�other�users.��On�

the�East-West,�for�instance�there�are�no�Transport�for�London�(TfL)�buses�on�90%,�hardly�any�residents,�hardly�

any�curb-side�businesses,�shops�and�pubs�and�things,�hardly�any�parking.��There�are�specific�benefits�from�the�

new�schemes�for�non-cyclists,�pedestrians�in�particular.��Something�like�7,000�square�metres�of�new�pedestrian�

space�across�the�two�East-West�and�North-South�routes;�new�crossings;�and�shorter�waits�at�many�existing�

crossings,�although�some�others�will�be�longer.�

�

Page 11



 

 

There�are�more�general�substantial�benefits�for�non-cyclists�from�modal�shift.��Every�extra�person�who�cycles�

obviously�is�freeing�up�a�space�for�another�person�on�the�bus,�on�the�Tube�or�indeed�freeing�up�a�space�for�the�

driver�on�the�road.��The�capacities�I�mentioned�created�by�these�new�routes�will�be�in�August.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Thank�you�for�that�outline.��As�I�say,�there�has�been�quite�a�lot�of�noise�

around�this�and�I�think�there�have�been�some�concerns�about�the�public�consultation,�particularly�for�residents�

who�perhaps�have�not�been�able�to�understand�some�of�the�technical�details,�as�well�as�obviously�the�business�

lobby�we�have�heard�mixed�views�from.�

�

What�is�the�scope�to�actually�redesign�bits�of�the�Cycle�Superhighways�to�listen�to�these�concerns�from�

pedestrians,�other�road�users�and�some�of�the�public,�who�I�think�are�concerned�they�will�not�be�able�to�do�

some�of�the�turns�that�they�currently�can?��Can�you�outline�that?��I�presume�you�have�been�through�umpteen�

versions�before�you�came�to�this�which�you�put�out�for�consultation.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Yes,�we�are�delighted�actually�by�the�amount�of�

support�we�have�had�from�this.��There�has�been�huge�support�in�the�consultation.��One�of�the�interesting�

things�is�quite�a�lot�of�businesses�have�come�spontaneously�forward�and�said�that�they�support�it,�big�ones�-�

Royal�Bank�of�Scotland�for�instance,�Unilever,�Orange,�Deloitte,�Allen�&�Overy,�lots�of�quite�big�employers.��

That�is,�I�think,�because�of�pressure�by�their�staff;�many�of�whom�cycle.��So�far,�anyway,�the�support�to�date�

has�far�outweighed�the�opposition.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Is�there�scope�to�make�some�adjustments?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��That�is�right,�we�are�in�the�middle�of�a�consultation�

and�obviously�the�whole�purpose�of�consultation�is�to�consult,�to�allow�people�to�point�out�things�we�might�

have�missed,�or�things�we�could�do�better,�ways�we�can�improve�the�scheme.��We�are�absolutely�committed�to�

working�with�people�who�have�concerns�to�see�if�we�can�find�ways�to�improve�the�scheme�and�remove�some�of�

those�concerns.�

�

You�are�right,�the�City�is�expressing�concerns�about�round�turns;�Trinity�Square,�for�instance,�as�has�

Westminster�actually.��We�are�working�with�them�to�find�ways�we�can�address�those�specific�concerns.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Have�you�been�using�international�best�practice�to�help�shape�some�of�

this�as�well?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Yes,�this�is�a�step�change�in�cycling�provision�for�

London.��As�I�say,�it�is�a�big�deal�for�cycling.��It�does�provide�continental-style�cycle�facilities�for�London.��For�

almost�the�first�time�there�is�a�short�stretch�of�continental-style�segregated�track�in�east�London,�about�a�mile�

of�it�on�the�CS2�between�Bow�and�Stratford,�but�this�is�the�first�major�scheme.��In�terms�of�cycling�it�will�link�

up�huge�areas.��It�will�link�the�existing�CS3.��As�you�know�at�the�moment�the�existing�CS3�sort�of�dumps�you�in�

the�Tower�Hill�gyratory,�with�nowhere�much�to�go.��It�will�link�to�the�end�of�that,�so�it�will�create�a�continuous�

largely�segregated�route�all�the�way�from�Barking�and�Canary�Wharf�in�the�east�out�to�Acton,�eventually,�in�the�

west.��It�will�link�with�the�North-South�route�at�Blackfriars,�from�Elephant�and�Castle,�King’s�Cross,�and�that�in�

turn�will�link�with�the�CS7�at�Elephant�and�Castle.��There�is�going�to�be�other�links�with�the�existing�

Superhighway�network,�CS8,�there�is�going�to�be�a�link�over�Westminster�Bridge�to�that.�

�

In�the�end�a�huge�number�of�journeys�across�central�and�inner�London�will�be�makeable,�largely�or�even�

entirely,�on�segregated�tracks.��There�is�another�scheme�going�in�through�Vauxhall,�which�we�have�finished�

Page 12



 

 

consultation�on,�a�segregated�track�through�the�Vauxhall�gyratory.��Of�course,�as�somebody�died�quite�recently�

no�cycles�have�to�go�around�the�gyratory�anymore�because�we�are�building�a�segregated�track�through�it.�

�

Then�we�are�linking�also�to�a�big�network�of�new�Quietway�back�street�routes.��The�Central�London�Grid,�it�is�

called�in�Zone�--�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��We�will�come�on�to�that�I�think.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Yes.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��I�think�as�long�as�it�is�a�genuine�consultation�I�think�people�will�be�

reassured.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��That�is�right.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��We�know�there�is�a�lot�of�support�that�there�are�some�concerns�as�well�

but�I�think�the�key�thing�about�segregation�is�what�we�had�called�for�in�our�big�report�[Gearing�Up�–�safer�

cycling�in�London1]�and�it�is�something�we�have�pushed.��I�think�it�will�hopefully�get�more�people�cycling.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��We�wanted�to�ask�you�some�questions�about�other�parts�of�the�infrastructure�and�how�

you�are�upgrading�them.��I�think,�for�example,�you�are�talking�about�upgrading�CS2,�and�then�of�course�there�

are�the�33�traffic�junctions�as�well.��Can�you�give�us�some�detail�about�what�is�happening�there?��You�have�

been�talking�about�it�linking�in,�to�some�extent,�with�these�two�new�Superhighways.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��That’s�right.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��What�is�the�detail?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��OK,�on�CS2�we�went�out�to�consultation�on�that�on,�I�

think,�23�September�2014.��It�is�out�at�consultation�now,�closing�on�2�November�2014.��That�is�basically�what�

people�have�been�calling�for�on�CS2�for�the�last�18�months.��Particularly�since�that�spate�of�deaths�that�took�

place�year,�on�or�near�CS2.��It�is�a�kerb�segregated�track�for�most�of�the�way,�but�where�we�cannot�fit�that�in�

without�impacting�on�the�buses,�what�we�are�doing�is�widening�the�bus�lane�and�creating�a�cycle�lane�within�

the�bus�lane�that�is�separated�from�it�by�plastic�traffic�wands.��There�are�going�to�be�‘floating�bus�stops’,�and�

that�is�all�the�bus�stops�on�the�route�are�going�to�be�‘floated’.�

�

The�problem�with�creating�segregated�tracks�on�roads�where�there�are�buses�is�that�the�track�has�to�go�

between�the�bus�and�the�pavement�and�anyone�getting�off�a�bus�risks�being�hit�by�a�cyclist.��So,�we�are�

avoiding�that�problem�by�creating�sort�of�islands,�if�you�like,�which�people�get�off�the�bus�on�to.��We�have�

done�that�on�the�extension�that�I�just�mentioned,�the�CS2�between�Bow�and�Stratford�and�it�has�worked�

extremely�well.��We�have�got�some�quite�interesting�research�that�shows�people�have�adapted�to�it�extremely�

well.��That�will�probably�address�pretty�much�all�the�concerns�that�people�have�about�CS2,�which�has�obviously�

caused�us�and�many�others�a�great�deal�of�--�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��If�you�have�an�island�how�do�the�disabled�get�on�or�off�the�island?��Can�you�just�

clarify�that�because�obviously�these�programmes�are�webcast�and�I�do�not�want�to�set�hares�running?�

�

                                                 
1�Gearing�Up�–�safer�cycling�in�London�–�Transport�Committee,�November�2012��
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/publications/gearing-up��

Page 13



 

 

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��There�is�level�access�from�the�pavement�to�the�island.��

What�you�see�on�the�existing�islands�along�the�Stratford�High�Street�-�on�the�existing�extension�to�CS2,�which�

we�opened�last�year�-�is�the�cycle�track�rises�to�the�level�of�the�pavement�and�that�has�the�effect�of�firstly,�

providing�level�access�for�the�disabled�and�the�elderly�and,�secondly,�slowing�down�cyclists�to�sort�of�preclude�

or�reduce�any�possibility�of�conflict.�

�

We�did�some�video�monitoring�actually�only�a�few�weeks�after�it�opened.��We�saw�1,444�cyclists�over�a�period�

of�about�three�days�and�in�that�whole�time�there�was,�I�think,�one�near�miss�and�there�were�no�actual�collisions.��

That�was�only�a�few�weeks�after�it�opened.��There�is�quite�a�lot�of�evidence�that�the�floating�bus�stops�are�

working�quite�well.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Can�I�move�on�now�to�the�other�area�in�this�section,�which�is�the�outer�London�matter�

of�mini-Hollands?��You�announced,�I�think,�three�winners,�back�at�the�beginning�of�the�year,�and�then�we�were�

promised�the�various�runners-up,�four�or�five�of�them.��There�would�be�studies�on�the�proposals�they�had�made�

and�then�an�announcement�of�the�funding�of�those.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Yes.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Where�have�you�got�to?��Obviously�I�have�an�interest��in�Merton,�which�is�one�of�my�

boroughs,�but�what�about�the�rest�of�them?��Where�are�you�with�funding�and�when�are�you�going�to�make�

some�specific�announcements?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��We�were�going�to�announce�this�at�Budget�Monitoring�

Sub-Committee�next�week.��We�have�now�written�to�all�the�boroughs,�but�literally�only�just.��I�only�cleared�the�

last�lot�of�letters�yesterday,�saying�what�they�are�going�to�get�out�of�the�borough�programme,�the�Quietways�

programme.��They�will�not�all�have�got�the�letters�yet,�so�can�I�leave�it�to�next�week�to�tell�people?��I�would�like�

the�boroughs�to�know�first,�rather�than�announcing�it�publically.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Would�you?�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Are�you�able�to�write�to�us�then�soon?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Yes.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Yes�please.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Basically�we�have�written�in�the�last�four�days�to�all�the�

boroughs.��The�letters�went�out�in�three�batches;�the�last�batch�went�out�last�night.��Merton�knows�what�it�is�

getting�anyway.��I�have�told�Merton.��In�Merton’s�case�we�are�going�to�fund�the�--�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��What�did�you�say�about�Merton?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Merton�does�know�what�it�is�getting.��I�told�Merton�a�

while�back�actually�what�it�was�getting.��In�Merton,�for�instance,�we�are�going�to�fund�the�Wimbledon�town�

centre�elements�of�their�Mini-Holland�bid�for�instance.��We�are�funding�elements�of�their�Mini-Holland�bid�for�

several�of�the�unsuccessful�runners�up.��As�you�know,�there�were�ten�shortlisted�and�only�three�got�it,�so�the�

other�seven�are�getting�elements�of�their�Mini-Holland�bit.��Ealing�is�getting�a�town�centre�redesign�as�well.��

That�sort�of�thing,�but�the�full�details�of�that�will�be�out�next�week.�

�

Page 14



 

 

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Right,�yes.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��We�will�get�that�around�as�soon�as�Budget�Monitoring�Sub-Committee�

starts.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Yes.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Your�officers�can�circulate�that�to�us.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��I�mean,�I�must�confess�there�are�feelings�about�this.��It�was�a�competition�effectively,�

which�certainly�I�know�you�invited�all�the�outer�London�boroughs�to�put�in�their�bids.��Most�of�them�did,�I�

think,�if�I�recollect.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Yes,�18�out�of�20.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��There�is�a�feeling,�and�I�know�Navin�[Shah�AM]�-�because�he�discussed�this�with�me�-�

we�feel�that�perhaps�there�should�be�an�integrated�programme�for�the�outer�London�boroughs.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Yes,�there�is�actually.��Basically�most�of�this�money�is�

coming�from�what�we�are�calling�the�Quietways�programme,�which�is�a�programme�of�mainly�backstreet�routes,�

and�it�is�going�to�extend�to�all�32�boroughs.��There�are�two�phases,�the�pilot�phase�which�is�already�underway,�

it�is�delivering�seven�routes�and�which�are�going�to�enter�15�boroughs.��Then�these�letters�we�are�writing�to�the�

boroughs�detail�our�proposals�for�the�second�phase,�which�also�should�be�underway�quite�soon�and�that�will�

cover�all�32�boroughs.��That�is�a�unified�network.��It�has�been�designed�in�close�consultation�with�the�

boroughs.�

�

We�have�had�long�months�of�discussion�with�them�about�where�they�want�to�do�it�and�how�it�fits�into�other�

borough’s�wishes.��There�will�be�an�integrated�network�of�routes�touching�every�borough�in�London�and�

available�for�orbital�journeys�as�well�as�radial�ones.��In�that�programme�there�is�also�a�number�of�what�we�are�

calling�‘big�ticket�interventions’.��There�is�actually�quite�a�good�network�of�small�roads�that�we�can�use�for�

Quietways�but�sometimes�they�come�up�against�difficult�to�penetrate�barriers�-�town�centres�typically�-�which�

you�cannot�avoid.��Where�you�cannot�avoid�a�barrier,�funding�intervenes�to�make�that�permeable�for�cyclists.��

Merton’s�Wimbledon�town�centre�is�a�good�example,�you�cannot�really�avoid�Wimbledon�town�centre�if�you�are�

going�in�that�part�of�the�world�and�we�are�funding�an�intervention�with�Merton�to�make�it�more�permeable�and�

ditto�Ealing,�ditto�Twickenham,�ditto�some�other�schemes.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Richard,�can�I�bring�Navin�in,�because�you�named�him,�just�on�that.��

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��I�am�pleased�to�hear�about�a�united�network�routes�programme.��Could�you�write�to�us�with�

details�about�the�timetable,�the�whole�timeframe?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Yes.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��I�think�that�is�important�that�in�outer�London�boroughs�there�are�major�economic�

programmes�to�meet�the�growth�projections,�etc.��You�have�got�opportunity�areas,�discretion�areas,�etc.�I�think�

it�will�be�very�critical�that�the�whole�of�a�mini-Holland�concept�is�not�left�simply�to�competing�for�funds,�it�

becomes�part�of�the�whole�strategy�for�sustainable�transport,�including�cycling.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Yes.�

Page 15



 

 

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��The�other�outer�boroughs,�to�be�honest,�are�not�going�

to�get�as�much�spent�on�them�as�the�mini-Holland�boroughs.��The�mini-Holland�boroughs�have�been�selected�

for�much�higher�spending�but�they�will�all�get�a�substantial�amount�spent�on�them.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:��Brilliant.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��We�will�pick�up�a�lot�of�details�on�this�in�our�December�hearing�and�

catch�up�on�cycling.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��The�other�question�to�you�is�the�contribution�that�cycling�can�make�to�the�

Infrastructure�Plan,�right�up�to�2050.��I�believe�you�have�projections�of�how�much�cycling�could�contribute,�so�

can�you�go�through�that�with�us?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Yes.��At�the�moment�there�are�about�580,000�journeys�

by�bike�a�day�in�London�and�we�envisage�that�rising�to�between�1.2�and�1.5�million.��That�will�include�really�

significant�modal�shift.��It�will�include�significant�reductions�in�the�pressure�on�other�modes,�bus�and�rail.��As�I�

said�at�the�beginning,�there�are�some�areas�where�we�cannot�probably�manage�without�it.��We�have�already�

seen�that�people�respond�to�facilities.��We�have�always�seen�that�modal�shift�occurs.��On�one�of�the�first�

Superhighways,�CS7,�for�instance,�we�did�some�surveys�after�it�had�been�open�for�a�year�and�32%�of�those�

cycling�on�that�route�were�new�to�cycling;�they�had�previously�travelled�by�other�modes.��Even�at�that�stage�

that�was�750�people�or�so�in�the�peak�hours,�which�are�ten�busloads�of�people�on�that�one�route�at�the�peak,�

at�Clapham�Common�I�think�it�was,�where�they�did�the�survey.�

�

That�is�an�example�of�the�kind�of�pressure�that�cycling�can�relieve�on�the�transport�network.��That�is�why�it�is�

important�when�people�think�about�cycling�lanes,�not�to�see�them�as�just�for�cyclists,�they�are�for�everybody.��

They�will�benefit�everybody,�even�those�people�who�have�no�intention�of�getting�on�a�bike.��One�of�the�

interesting�things�is,�again,�we�have�got�survey�evidence�to�this�effect,�that�actually�seven�out�of�ten�people�

who�do�not�cycle�now�say�they�would�be�prepared�to�consider�cycling�if�the�safe�facilities�were�available�for�

them.��That�is�obviously�a�key�barrier�to�cycling,�the�perception�of�danger.��Since�we�announced�the�cycling�

vision�in�March�2013�there�has�been�23�deaths�of�cyclists�in�London.��Of�those,�ten�were�at�places�where�we�

are�proposing�to�install�segregated�lanes�or�junctions.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Safety�is�terribly�important.��You�mentioned�the�people�who�say�they�will�not�cycle�at�

the�moment�because�they�are�concerned�about�safety,�and�I�can�understand�that�-�whether�they�are�elderly�or�

just�sort�of�slightly�cautious.��How�do�you�get�over�that�really?��How�can�you�prove�to�them,�and�how�can�you�

prove�honestly�to�pedestrians�that�cyclists�will�operate�their�own�mode�of�transport�much�more�safely?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��The�answer�to�those�two�points�is�the�same�actually.��

One�of�the�key�reasons�why�people�do�not�cycle�is�they�do�not�feel�safe,�whether�rightly�or�wrongly.��Actually�

cycling�is�fairly�safe�but�a�lot�of�people�do�not�think�that,�a�lot�of�people�think�it�is�unsafe.��As�I�say,�there�have�

been�some�pretty�awful�cases.��We�had�a�terrible�spate�of�deaths�about�this�time�last�year,�just�coming�up�to�

this�time�when�the�clocks�change;�things�get�dark;�and�the�weather�gets�worse,�casualties�go�up.��For�instance,�

there�is�quite�a�lot�empirical�evidence�from�other�countries�that�if�people�are�provided�with�good�cycle�routes,�

or�even�not�that�good�cycle�routes�actually,�they�will�cycle�more.��As�you�say,�on�CS7�which�is�most�of�its�time�

a�strip�of�blue�paint�and�no�more,�there�has�been�a�significant�uplift�in�cycling�there.��If�that�produces�32%�of�

cyclists�shifting�from�other�modes�then�who�knows�what�a�segregated�track�could�do.��It�will�probably�be�much�

better�than�that.��That�is�certainly�the�evidence�we�have�seen�from�other�countries.�

�

Page 16



 

 

The�other�half�of�your�question�is�how�do�you�prevent�cyclists�from�imperilling�other�road�users.��Actually,�part�

of�the�answer�to�that�is�getting�more�and�different�types�of�cyclists�cycling.��At�the�moment�cycling�is�

disproportionately�young�and�male�and�that�is�because�of�the�conditions,�I�suppose�-�those�are�the�people�who�

feel�able�to�cycle.��What�I�want�to�see�from�these�changes,�and�I�think�what�we�will�see,�is�far�more�women�

doing�it�and�far�more�older�people�doing�it.��What�that�will�do�is�just�kind�of�generally�reduce�the�testosterone�

level,�calm�things�down�a�bit,�change�the�culture�of�cycling�a�bit�more�toward�what�we�see�in�continental�cities,�

which�already�have�separated�infrastructure;�you�know,�German�cities,�Dutch�cities,�where�you�do�see�people�of�

all�ages�riding�along�quite�slowly�on�quite�clunky�bikes�in�their�ordinary�clothes.��That�is�what�I�want�to�see�in�

London.��Of�course�it�will�be�a�while�coming�but�that�is�the�answer�in�the�end�to�the�complaints�about�people�

in�London.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��I�have�noticed�recently�quite�a�bit�of�discussion�in�the�press�about�identifying�cyclists.��I�

mean,�of�course�that�leads�us�to�registration�plates�or�some�sort�of�identification.��Is�that�realistic?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��No.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��You�know�talking�of�the�period�up�to�2050,�at�some�point�I�assume�there�will�be�some�

consideration�of�that.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��I�think�it�is�a�disproportionate�answer.��It�would�create�

a�vast�new�bureaucracy.��We�would�have�to�register�everyone;�we�would�have�to�enforce�it.��The�police,�they�

will�not�hear�of�it�actually,�because�it�would�just�be�a�huge�amount�of�work�for�them�in�order�to�tackle�a�

problem,�which�although�real,�is�not�gigantic.��I�saw�some�figures�for�2011,�for�instance;�the�number�of�

pedestrians�seriously�injured�by�cyclists�in�London�in�2011�was�nine;�the�number�of�pedestrians�seriously�

injured�by�motor�vehicles�is�more�than�1,700.�I�think�it�would�be�a�disproportionate�response�to�the�problem.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��Just�a�quick�question�on�safety,�while�you�are�talking�about�that.��There�has�been�a�

thing�in�the�papers�saying�these�cycle�lanes�are�going�to�be�so�popular�that�actually,�fast�cyclists�are�going�to�

not�want�to�use�them.��I�am�just�a�bit�concerned�that�the�point�why�we�are�trying�to�do�all�this�is�because�of�

safety.��What�if�cyclists�do�not�have�to�use�them�and,�therefore,�are�still�a�hazard?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��We�are�not�going�to�force�people�to�use�them,�but�our�

experience�in�the�one�place�where�we�have�done�this�at�Stratford�High�Street�is�that�the�vast�majority�do.��This�

survey�I�mentioned�at�the�bus�stop�bypasses,�that�also�included�monitoring�how�many�cyclists�were�using�them�

and�it�was�98.5%,�96.1%�at�these�bus�stops.��Therefore�the�vast�majority�of�cyclists�did�use�the�cycle�

segregated�track�and�did�not�go�in�the�road.�

�

One�of�the�reasons�I�am�confident�those�kinds�of�results�will�be�repeated�elsewhere�on�the�network,�when�we�

build�it,�is�that�the�new�tracks�will�be�quite�wide.�They�are�going�to�be�typically�3.5�metres,�4.0�metres�wide,�

and�that�is�wide�enough�for�both�speeds�of�cyclists�to�use,�so�you�can�overtake.��So�that�is�the�--�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Helpful�clarification.��Right,�our�final�couple�of�points�that�people�want�

to�raise.���

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Can�I�just�start�by�saying�I�think�cross-party�we�have�all�

supported�space�for�cycling�and�segregation.��I�think�it�is�a�bit�distressing�to�see�that�there�has�been�a�bit�of�an�

opening�up�of�conflict�about�this�issue.��Given�that�it�is�a�difficult�issue�I�think�it�is�really�more�important�that�

we�all�stay�calm�and�get�on�with�the�job,�which�must�be�about�having�some�decent�design�consultation�and�

listening�to�people�as�well�as�pressing�ahead.�

Page 17



 

 

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��Absolutely.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Just�to�throw�that�into�the�pot�generally,�particularly�because�

we�do�not�want�to�see�a�situation�like�the�Cycle�Superhighways�having�to�be�refitted�later,�or�a�later�Mayor�

taking�them�out�because�it�is�controversial.��When�these�happen�we�want�them�to�be�good�and�we�want�them�

to�last�and�that�is�a�message.�

�

There�has�been�a�lot�of�noise�about�this�issue,�as�you�are�aware.��One�of�the�issues�that�has�been�raised�that�we�

felt�we�should�put�into�the�public�arena�here�is�the�question�of�whether�or�not�-�given�that�there�is�some�public�

conflict�about�this�issue�at�the�moment�-�Peter�Anderson�[Managing�Director�of�Finance�at�Canary�Wharf�

Group�plc],�as�a�TfL�Board�Member,�has�potentially�a�conflict�of�interest�on�this�issue�and�whether�or�not�this�

has�been�thought�about�and�how�it�might�be�dealt�with�by�the�Mayor�within�the�context�of�TfL?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��It�does�raise�important�issues;�we�are�seeking�legal�

advice�on�Mr�Anderson’s�position�from�the�General�Counsel�Harold�Carter.��TfL�does�have�processes�in�place�in�

accordance�with�the�statutory�requirement�under�the�Greater�London�Authority�(GLA)�Act�1999,�for�dealing�

with�conflicts�of�interest�at�Board�and�Panel�meetings.��Where�there�is�a�conflict�a�Board�Member�can�be�

recused�from�discussing�the�relevant�subject�matter.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��That�is�very�helpful.��I�am�glad�that�you�have�taken�it�up.��To�

be�fair�to�Mr�Anderson,�I�have�to�say�when�this�issue,�on�another�context,�has�been�raised�he�did�behave�

absolutely�properly.�There�is�no�suggestion�that�he�would�not�be�from�us,�but�I�think�we�are�happy�to�know�

that�the�Mayor�is�aware�of�that�concern.�

�

Can�I�just�quickly�ask�you�one�more?��This�is�very�specific,�do�forgive�me.��You�mentioned�the�terrible�cycling�

deaths�we�saw.��As�far�as�I�am�aware,�there�is�not�much�of�a�plan�to�improve�Bow�roundabout�itself�in�the�short�

term,�and�that�was�one�of�the�worst�locations�that�we�have�all�visited�and�we�felt�it�was�poor�for�the�

pedestrians�as�well�as�for�cyclists.��Has�that�been�scheduled?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��There�is�a�significant�scheme�to�improve�it�for�

pedestrians.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Right.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��You�are�right;�it�is�very�poor�for�pedestrians.��As�you�

know,�it�has�been�the�subject�of�several�improvements,�including�fairly�recently�the�installation�of�low�level�

traffic�lights�for�cyclists,�which�have�cut�conflict�and�incidents�at�that�location�very�significantly.��However,�it�is,�

as�you�say,�a�very�totemic�location.�

�

The�difficulty�with�Bow�roundabout�is�simply�this;�in�order�to�get�the�upgrade�of�the�inner�CS2�route�to�work,�

ie�the�bit�between�Whitechapel,�Aldgate�and�Bow,�we�have�to�reduce�the�capacity�of�that�road.�In�order�for�

that�to�work�we�have�to�maintain�the�capacity�of�Bow�roundabout,�because�the�traffic�coming�down�the�A11�

we�want�to�turn�left�and�go�down�the�A12�and�then�on�the�A13�to�reach�central�London.��That�is�why�Bow�

roundabout�is�so�tricky.��We�are�going�to�do�it�and�there�is�a�scheme�for�pedestrians.�

�

You�are�right,�the�final�scheme�is�still�--�

�

Page 18



 

 

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��I�am�conscious�of�time�but�we�have�a�session�on�cycling�in�

December�and�I�think�we�will�want�to�come�back�to�you�on�that�then.�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��The�Bow�roundabout�is�really,�really�tricky,�however�we�

have�done�things�there�which�have�already�reduced�the�number�of�incidents�at�that�roundabout.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��I�very�much�share�your�vision�of�a�continental�style�infrastructure,�Andrew.�I�think�that�

is�very�welcome,�having�cycled�around�Denmark,�Poland�and�Germany�and�so�on�-�you�just�know�the�difference�

instantly.�

�

Can�I�ask�you�to�confirm�how�many�of�the�Cycle�Superhighways�will�be�completed�by�2016,�by�the�end�of�this�

current�term?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��The�Cycle�Superhighways�will�probably�include�the�

same�number�of�Cycle�Superhighways�as�before,�they�are�not�all�in�the�same�places.��There�are�still�going�to�be�

12.��As�you�know�we�have�cancelled�CS6�and�CS12,�which�we�announced�in�a�mayoral�answer�a�few�weeks�ago,�

but�obviously�in�their�place�come�the�East-West�and�North-South�Superhighways.�

�

There�are�a�couple�of�others�which�are�being�delivered�as�part�of�mini-Holland�or�Quietway-type�programmes,�

although�they�are�on�main�roads.��CS9,�for�instance,�in�Hounslow�-�I�have�answered�a�question�to�you�or�the�

Mayor�has�answered�a�question�to�you�about�that�-�that�is�going�ahead�on�the�Hammersmith�and�Fulham�and�

Hounslow�parts�of�the�route,�which�is�the�vast�majority�of�the�route.�

�

There�is�going�to�be�a�new�Superhighway�on�Lea�Bridge�Road�in�Waltham�Forest�as�part�of�its�Mini-Holland�

bid,�which�will�link�into�a�route�to�central�London�through�Hackney.��The�Mini-Holland�ones�are�essentially�in�

the�gift�of�the�boroughs.��I�am�pretty�sure�Waltham�Forest�wants�to�do�its�one�by�2016;�the�CS2�upgrade�will�

be�by�2016;�East-West�and�North-South�will�be�by�2016;�CS1�will�also�be�by�2016�-�that�goes�from�the�City�to�

Tottenham,�parallel�to�the�A10;�and�CS11�probably�will�be�by�the�end�of�2016.�

�

We�have�upgrades�on�various�other�routes�as�well.��There�are�two�upgrades�coming�in�on�CS5;�there�is�the�big�

scheme�at�Vauxhall�Cross�I�mentioned�that�is�starting�pretty�soon;�there�is�an�upgrade�on�CS7�to�Oval�-�that�is�

starting�almost�imminently�in�the�next�few�weeks.��All�of�those�are�by�2016.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��I�suppose�one�of�the�big�frustrations�for�you�is�that�when�you�came�in�you�have�had�to�

put�so�much�time�and�energy�-�and�so�has�TfL�-�into�actually�redoing�some�of�the�original�Cycle�

Superhighways.��Can�you�just�spell�out�for�the�Committee�the�main�lessons�that�have�been�learned�from�the�

original�round�of�Cycle�Superhighways�and�what�is�being�worked�on�now?�

�

Andrew	Gilligan	(Mayor’s	Cycling	Commissioner):��The�quality�was�mixed,�in�my�view.��They�have�had�a�

lot�of�criticism�but,�actually,�there�are�some�which�are�actually�quite�good.��CS3�we�get�very�few�complaints�

about.��That�is�substantially�segregated�with�some�quiet�roads�and�narrow�streets�in�Limehouse,�for�instance.��

We�have�had�actually�relatively�few�problems�with�CS7,�although�it�is�largely�a�paint-on-the-road�route.��We�

have�had�many�more�problems�with�CS2�and�that�is�why�we�are�taking�the�approach�we�have�done�with�those.��

CS7�has�point�improvements;�we�are�doing�improvements�at�some�of�the�junctions.��CS2�is�a�full�kerb-

segregated�or�semi-segregated�upgrade.�

�

The�lessons�have�been�variable�but�actually�what�we�have�seen,�as�I�mentioned�earlier,�is�that�even�blue-paint�

Superhighways�can�attract�new�people�to�cycling.��If�we�can�do�that�with�those�sorts�of�facilities,�imagine�what�

we�could�do�with�something�kerb-separated.�

Page 19



 

 

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��OK.��We�are�going�to�get�into�some�of�that�detail�when�you�come�back�

before�us�for�a�whole�session�in�December.��Thank�you�very�much,�Andrew,�for�coming�to�us�at�fairly�short�

notice,�just�to�clarify�some�of�those�points.��It�links�into�our�Infrastructure�Plan�discussion�now.��Thank�you�

very�much�indeed.�

�

�

�

Page 20



 

 

Appendix 2 
Transport	Committee	–	14	October	2014	

	
Transcript	of	Item	6	–	Mayor’s	London	Infrastructure	Plan	2050	

	

	

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��We�are�now�going�to�focus�on�the�Mayor’s�Infrastructure�Plan.�

�

Can�I�welcome�our�excellent�panel�of�guests�before�us�today?��Starting�off,�we�have�Michèle�Dix,�Managing�

Director�of�Planning�at�TfL.��Fantastic.��Welcome�back�before�the�Committee.��Ian�Brown�who�is�no�longer�

working�at�TfL�but�he�has�a�great�deal�of�knowledge�around�transport.��Welcome�back,�Ian,�before�our�

Committee�today.��We�have�Alastair�Willis,�who�is�the�Commercial�Manager�for�Abellio�London,�and�he�is�going�

to�give�us�a�commercial�perspective�today.��Thank�you�very�much�for�coming�along.��Joanne�Dodds,�who�is�

Technical�Director�at�Intelligent�Transport�Systems�(ITS),�has�stepped�in�at�the�very�last�minute�as�well.��Thank�

you�very�much�for�coming�along�today.��We�are�going�to�be�joined�by�Dr�Stephen�Marshall.��He�has�had�train�

issues�coming�in�from�Cambridge�this�morning,�but�he�is�a�Reader�in�Urban�Morphology�and�Planning�at�

Bartlett�School�of�Planning,�University�College�London�(UCL).��We�have�very�distinguished�guests�before�us�

today�looking�at�the�Infrastructure�Plan�to�2050.�

�

There�are�a�lot�of�assumptions�in�this�plan:�the�population�of�London�looking�to�grow�from�8.7�million�in�2015�

to�11.3�million�in�2050,�jobs�going�up,�visitors�going�up�and�all�sorts�of�pressures.��I�wanted�to�pick�up�one�of�

the�assumptions,�which�is�that�we�have�a�central�activity�zone�and�all�the�transport�seems�to�be�focused�around�

that�with�radial�transport�routes,�rather�than�the�idea�of�satellite�zones�around�outer�London�and�investing�in�

orbital�transport.��Why�has�the�Plan�chosen�to�go�down�that�route?���

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�have�looked�at�the�way�in�

which�London�would�develop�in�terms�of�its�economic�development�and�the�pros�and�cons�of�supporting�the�

pressures�for�increased�development�in�the�centre.��We�have�done�a�lot�of�work�-�and�it�is�referred�to�in�the�

document�-�about�the�benefits�of�agglomeration.��In�areas�where�employment�density�is�greater,�the�output�

per�worker�is�actually�greater.��The�output�per�worker�in�central�London�is�70%�greater�than�the�average�for�

the�UK�and�there�is�a�direct�correlation�between�density�of�employment�and�output.�

�

Whilst�there�is�pressure�for�people�to�invest�in�London,�particularly�in�central�London,�it�is�whether�or�not�we�

respond�to�that.��If�we�respond�to�that,�it�gives�rise�to�greater�levels�of�gross�domestic�product�(GDP).��If�we�do�

not�respond�to�that�-�and�we�have�done�tests�whereby�we�have�made�assumptions�about�putting�more�of�the�

employment�out�of�central�areas�-�then�you�can�save�on�some�of�the�infrastructure�costs�associated�with�

moving�people�out.��That�is�if�the�people�who�want�to�place�those�jobs�actually�want�to�move�out.��However,�

there�is�then�a�net�loss�in�terms�of�the�contribution�to�the�economy�because�those�jobs�by�definition�end�up�

not�being�as�productive.��Therefore,�there�is�a�pressure�to�continue�investing�in�the�centre.�

�

We�have�also�looked�in�some�of�our�work�at�where�housing�would�go,�particularly�in�relation�to�those�jobs.��We�

have�looked�at�different�distribution�patterns,�again,�to�understand�what�that�means�for�long-term�plans�for�

London�and�how�London�should�be�developing.��The�central�area�growth�is�very�much�based�on�how�we�can�

support�the�economy�to�the�maximum�and�certainly,�by�supporting�it,�we�will�do�that�but�that�does�then�imply�

more�radial�capacity�into�the�centre.��It�does�not�mean�that�there�is�no�orbital�capacity�required�across�the�

network.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��All�right.��Ian,�you�are�the�king�of�orbital�travel.��You�helped�bring�

about�London�Overground.��It�seems�to�all�of�us�that�lots�of�people�want�to�travel�around�--�

Page 21



 

 

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��I�agree�with�the�diagnosis�from�Michèle�regarding�

employment�and�the�contribution�to�the�economy.��Nevertheless,�there�are�an�awful�lot�of�journeys,�

particularly�the�percentage�market�share�by�road�journeys,�which�are�orbital.��When�we�tried�the�Overground�

ideas,�ie�a�circle�around�London,�we�had�great�difficulty�trying�to�work�out�what�the�market�was�for�all�these�

journeys�because�the�aggregate�was�a�big�number�but�the�individuals�were�very�small.�

�

The�proof�of�the�pudding�is�there�are�a�lot�of�journeys�which�are�orbital�and�if�we�are�going�to�change�market�

share�from�road�to�rail,�we�can�justify�investment�in�them.��However,�that�response�in�supporting�orbital�

development�is�in�the�context�of�Michèle’s�response�about�employment.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��You�see�orbital�travel�and�the�investment�in�that�far�more�about�

relieving�road�capacity�rather�than�actually�travelling�to�employment�zones?�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��The�journeys�that�exist�already�rather�than�the�

creation�of�new�urban�centres�is�the�discussion.��There�are�a�lot�of�journeys,�particularly�in�the�service�industry,�

to�employment,�of�course,�so�yes.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Joanne�[Dodds]�and�Alastair�[Wills],�do�you�have�anything�you�want�to�

add�on�that�about�orbital�travel�versus�radial?�

�

Alastair	Willis	(Commercial	Manager,	Abellio	London):��I�have�nothing�to�add�on�that�topic,�thanks.�

�

Joanne	Dodds	(Technical	Director,	Intelligent	Transport	Systems):��It�probably�depends,�really,�if�you�

think�about�the�type�of�journeys�that�people�are�making.��Michèle�[Dix]�makes�a�very�valid�point�regarding�

business.�

�

I�do�not�live�in�London�now.��I�live�up�in�the�North�East.��My�parents�live�in�the�South.��The�fastest�journey�by�

public�transport�is�via�London.��I�do�not�want�to�really�come�into�the�central�London�area,�but�there�is�no�

public�transport�equivalent�of�the�M25�to�get�me�around�the�city�and�thereby�avoid�the�need�to�go�into�the�

central�area.��That�kind�of�thing�is�something�that�could�possibly�benefit�people�both�inside�London�and�

outside�London,�if�that�were�to�happen.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��What�about�commercially,�Alastair,�in�terms�of�looking�at�forward�

investment?��Would�Abellio�and�other�commercial�operators�only�see�radial�routes�as�more�profitable?�

�

Alastair	Willis	(Commercial	Manager,	Abellio	London):��Having�a�central�point�delivers�a�lot�of�benefit�for�

the�focus�for�passengers’�demands�going�into�one�location.��The�interesting�one�is�the�focus�around�where�

people�are�working,�but�actually�do�people�look�at�different�locations�for�where�they�are�going�for�their�leisure�

demand�or�other�areas�that�creates�the�requirement�to�travel�elsewhere?��That�is�quite�an�interesting�one.�

�

Certainly,�from�an�operator’s�focus�around�having�some�central�points�to�go�into,�it�enables�us�to�focus�

resources�on�those�areas.�The�demand�between�those�locations�will�clearly�then�also�be�a�factor�in�where�and�

how�we�would�resource�those�impact�requirements.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��There�is�clearly�an�urgency�of�investing�in�new�transport�-�and�

obviously�that�is�the�focus�of�our�meeting�and�the�Planning�Committee�is�doing�some�more�detail�on�it�this�

afternoon�-�before�2050,�which�is�what�this�plan�is�about,�particularly�given�that�Peter�Hendy,�the�

Page 22



 

 

Commissioner�[of�Transport],�recently�said�that�there�would�be�“overwhelming”�overcrowding�by�2030�and�

predicted�“social�unrest”�if�low-paid�workers�could�not�easily�commute�to�work.��Is�this�plan�perhaps�too�late?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��This�plan�is�part�of�a�timeline�of�

improvements.��On�the�orbital�point,�I�will�just�come�back�to�say�that�the�Plan�does�allow�for�orbital�

improvements�in�transport.��The�Plan�recognises�that�there�is�a�demand�in�outer�London�for�movements�

between�areas�and�town�centres�and�there�is�provision�for�encouraging�more�orbital�movements,�particularly�

making�more�of�the�National�Rail�network,�which�Ian�[Brown�CBE]�will�be�very�much�aware�of.��Our�aspiration�

is�for�greater�devolution�of�the�suburban�part�of�the�National�Rail�network�so�we�can�join�the�dots,�particularly�

so�that�we�can�enable�some�of�those�movements�and�obviously�with�bus�travel�as�well.�

�

Is�the�Plan�too�late?��No,�the�Plan�is�all�about�identifying�what�is�needed�by�2050�and�making�sure�we�have�a�

means�of�funding�it�and�financing�it�in�place�by�2050.��As�you�know,�quite�a�lot�of�the�big�things�that�we�want�

to�do�take�a�long�time�and�we�have�to�start�now�if�we�are�going�to�deliver�them�by�2050�and,�indeed,�by�2030.��

Peter�[Hendy]�is�quite�right�in�terms�of�all�the�stuff�we�are�doing�right�now�by�upgrading�the�Tube,�finishing�

Crossrail�1,�completing�Thameslink�and�doing�the�improvements�that�Ian�[Brown�CBE]�started�on�the�rail�

network.�

�

All�of�those�will�not�suffice�for�2030.��We�need�to�provide�some�additional�capacity�by�2030.��Crossrail�2,�

therefore,�is�very�much�a�project�that�we�want�to�take�forward.��We�have�started�work�on�it.��We�are�consulting�

on�it.��We�are�trying�to�move�that�forward�as�fast�as�we�can�so�that�it�is�ready�by�2029.��We�are�also�doing�a�lot�

in�terms�of�making�sure�that�some�of�the�other�improvements�that�are�going�to�be�in�place�in�London�by�2030,�

such�as�High�Speed�2�(HS2),�actually�have�connections�into�the�rest�of�the�London�network,�thereby�providing�

some�of�the�orbital�links�that�people�have�referred�to;�particularly�at�Old�Oak�Common.�We�have�a�big�

interchange�with�Crossrail�1�and�that�would�actually�provide�for�vast�improvements�to�west�Londoners�if�we�

connected�the�Overground�to�Old�Oak�Common�and�also�if�we�had�linkages�between�the�West�Coast�Main�Line�

and�Crossrail�1.��These�are�things�that�all�can�be�done�by�2030.�

�

In�terms�of�the�point�that�Peter�[Hendy]�made,�the�point�that�Peter�made�was�all�about�the�fact�that�because�

poorer�people�are�moving�out�of�central�London�and�are�moving�into�areas�where�they�are�perhaps�more�reliant�

on�the�bus�network,�it�is�about�making�sure�that�we�do�not�forget�about�the�revenue�part�of�our�business;�that�

we�do�get�revenue�support�to�ensure�the�buses�still�can�be�provided,�so�that�we�can�provide�people�with�a�

reasonable�fare�by�which�they�can�travel�in�order�to�access�the�jobs.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):		It�is�really�a�question�about�how�the�assumptions�behind�the�

proposals�have�or�might�change�in�the�future.��One�of�the�basic�assumptions�in�there�that�changed�very,�very�

quickly�was�of�course�that�the�Estuary�Airport�is�not�going�to�proceed.��However,�the�infrastructure�proposals�

mentioned�in�here�from�a�transport�point�of�view�are�based�around�an�assumption�that�there�would�be�an�

Estuary�Airport.��How�would�knowing�that�then�when�you�wrote�this�have�changed�what�has�gone�on�in�this�

consultation�document?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��This�is�a�2050�plan.��

Sir�Howard�Davies�[Chairman,�Airports�Commission]�has�only�made�proposals�for�2030�with�the�identification�

of�options�between�two�runways.��In�terms�of�London’s�growth,�many�of�the�proposals�that�we�have�put�in�

place�for�supporting�London’s�growth�-�particularly�in�the�east,�where�a�large�amount�of�the�population�growth�

will�take�place�-�will�require�some�of�the�infrastructure�improvements�that�have�been�identified�to�also�support�

a�Thames�Estuary�Airport.�

�

Page 23



 

 

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):		In�fact,�Michèle,�it�is�quite�clear�that�the�Mayor’s�aspiration�

was�to�see�Heathrow�Airport�closed�and�the�hub�moved.��It�is�clear�that�Heathrow�is�not�going�to�close�and,�

indeed,�there�is�not�a�demand�anywhere�for�it�to�close.��In�fact,�there�is�more�concern�that�anybody�could�have�

thought�it�should�close.�

�

Would�you�not�have�wanted,�for�example,�to�see�some�better�surface�transport�links�to�support�Heathrow?��

Terminal�5�has�two�great�big�multi-billion�pound�station�boxes�underneath.��Would�it�not�have�made�more�

sense�for�a�2050�Infrastructure�Plan�to�have�talked�about�the�realistic�infrastructure�demands�of�surface�

transport�to�Heathrow�rather�than�a�speculative�proposal�for�the�Estuary?��I�appreciate�it�was�your�boss’s�main�

aspiration,�but�there�is�not�a�reference�in�here�to�giving�better�services�to�Heathrow,�which�seems�to�me�to�be�

a�huge�lack�in�an�infrastructure�plan�for�London.��Do�you�not�think�there�is�a�hole�to�fill�there?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��As�I�say,�the�aspiration�is�what�we�

need�for�London�for�2050.��This�is�a�plan�that�sets�out�those�requirements�for�2050.��It�identifies�a�new�airport�

in�the�East.��In�doing�that,�it�acknowledges�that�aviation�connectivity�is�really,�really�important,�particularly�in�

terms�of�opening�up�new�routes�to�new�destinations,�which�it�so�happens�a�four-runway�hub�airport�would�do.�

�

However,�in�the�work�we�have�been�doing�in�response�to�the�Airports�Commission�proposals�and�in�responding�

to�the�three�options�that�are�still�on�[Sir�Howard]�Davies’�[Chairman,�Airports�Commission]�shortlist,�we�

recognise�that�substantial�improvements�will�be�needed�in�London�if�we�are�going�to�have�additional�aviation�

growth�in�those�locations.��We�would�also�have�to�identify�many�more�places�in�which�new�housing�can�be�

developed.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):		Are�we�likely�to�see�some�of�that�expressed�in�the�final�

document,�then?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��I�still�think�the�2050�plan�is�all�

based�on�ensuring�that�we�have�a�hub�airport�fit�for�purpose�by�2050.��As�I�say,�Sir�Howard�Davies�has�only�

identified�a�solution�to�2030.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):		I�know�all�my�colleagues�would�not�necessarily�agree�with�me,�

but�for�the�record�I�think�it�is�a�huge�disgrace�that�a�London�Infrastructure�Plan�could�not�really�seriously�

address�the�need�for�better�surface�transport�access�to�Heathrow.��It�rather�degrades�the�quality�and�status�of�

the�document�when�that�is�being�evaded�as�an�issue.�

�

Can�I�just�move�on?��You�mentioned�and�there�has�been�a�quick�discussion�about�Sir�Peter�Hendy’s�comments�

about�the�need�to�address�the�transport�needs�of�the�poor.��We�have�talked�about,�really,�this�orbital�and�radial�

debate.��Do�you�think�there�is�scope�within�London’s�transport�plans�to�generate�different�levels�of�job�growth�

and�to�influence�the�shifting�of�the�population�around�London?��Do�you�think�we�could�be�doing�more�to�push�

towards�generating�sustainable,�high-population,�active�economic�areas�in�the�rest�of�London?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�have�looked�at�the�

opportunities�for�doing�more�of�that.��We�also�recognise�that�not�all�the�jobs�in�London�are�in�central�London.��

Even�the�growth�of�jobs�is�not�just�going�to�be�in�central�London.��There�will�be�jobs�in�outer�London.��Some�

60%�of�jobs�are�in�outer�London�already�but�they�are�dispersed�across�the�network.��They�are�along�high�

streets�and�in�different�smaller�centres.��Therefore,�those�jobs�will�still�be�there�and�those�jobs�will�still�grow.�

�

However,�in�terms�of�what�we�can�do�about�those�high�productivity�jobs�and�whether�we�can�encourage�more�

of�those�to�be�located�elsewhere,�as�I�was�saying�to�Caroline,�there�is�a�downside�to�doing�that�in�terms�of�how�

Page 24



 

 

productive�they�become.��What�we�do�imagine�is�that�the�pressure�for�the�central�area�growing�will�continue�in�

the�same�way�we�have�seen�the�central�area�growing�into�Elephant�and�Castle�and�into�Vauxhall;�we�will�see�

further�extensions�into�Paddington;�we�have�Stratford�and,�with�the�provision�of�HS2�at�Old�Oak�Common,�

there�will�be�pressure�for�that�to�grow�as�well.��However,�that�does�not�mean�that�there�will�not�be�jobs�

elsewhere�and�that�those�jobs�will�not�be�serviced.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):		The�implication�of�what�you�are�saying�there�is�passive,�

“There�will�be�jobs�elsewhere,�but�...”��In�fact,�there�has�been�a�proactive�attempt�to�create�some�mini-centres�

with�polycentric�approaches;�Croydon�is�the�classic.��That�radial�transport�scheme�created�a�mini-hub�in�

Croydon�as�an�employment-generator.��In�terms�of�quality�of�life�in�London�and�reducing�people’s�journey�

times�and�reducing�congestion,�does�it�not�make�any�sense�to�look�at�creating�some�more�polycentric�hubs�

around�the�rest�of�London?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��It�was�certainly�one�of�the�things�

that�was�looked�at�in�the�creation�of�the�Mayor’s�Transport�Strategy�(MTS).��It�has�been�revisited�this�time.��It�

was�also�looked�at�by�the�Outer�London�Commission�to�see�what�more�you�could�do�in�outer�London�to�create�

centres�for�employment.��Office�employment�was�one�of�the�things�that�was�examined.��In�particular,�in�places�

such�as�Croydon,�they�were�built�up�and�then�they�declined.��A�lot�more�work�is�now�going�into�Croydon�to�

reinvest�in�Croydon,�however,�the�offer�there�is�very�much�a�mixed�offer�of�residential,�leisure�and�some�office,�

it�is�not�all�as�focused�on�office�as�it�was�previously.��We�expect�we�would�want�to�support�that�in�other�centres�

such�as�Brent�Cross,�such�as�Stratford,�such�as�the�town�centres.�

�

However,�that�does�not�take�away�the�demand�that�will�still�exist�for�central�London.��We�recognise�that�we�

have�to�support�them�all,�but�that�does�not�negate�that�support�for�central�London.�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��Previous�strategies�talked�about�“hubs”�in�places�

like�Stratford�and�Croydon.��Where�we�have�tried�them,�they�have�been�enormously�successful,�of�course.��

There�is�the�employment�hub�argument�and�of�course�there�is�a�dominance�of�central�London,�which�I�am�not�

trying�to�contest.��However,�if�you�think�of�transport�hubs�as�well�as�employment�hubs,�the�two�come�together�

very�strongly.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):		Yes,�that�is�the�point.��

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��Bringing�up�some�of�the�points�made�by�

Joanne�[Dodds]�and�Alastair�[Willis],�we�could�make�much�more�of�our�orbital�links.��For�instance,�the�

Overground�is�a�starter�pack�that�has�proved�-�I�tried�to�go�on�one�last�night;�I�failed�and�I�got�on�the�one�

behind�-��it�is�enormously�popular.��If�we�finished�that�off�and�did�Brockley,�Brixton,�Old�Oak�Common,�

Willesden�Junction�and�West�Hampstead,�for�instance,�you�actually�have�double�the�network�for�all�these�

journeys.��Therefore,�I�do�think�that�argument�about�employment�hubs�needs�to�have�the�transport�part�added�

to�it.��If�you�have�good�transport�links�to�places�like�Croydon�-�not�just�on�the�main�line�from�London�but�all�

around�-�the�actual�attractiveness�of�those�points,�as�seen�by�Stratford,�increases.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):		That�is�exactly�the�point�I�was�trying�to�make,�but�you�made�it�

so�much�more�eloquently,�Ian.�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��I�am�always�here�to�help.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Thank�you�for�that.��I�am�not�sure�I�fully�understand�how�you�are�more�

productive�if�you�work�in�central�London.��I�used�to�work�in�Croydon;�I�think�I�was�very�productive�there.���

Page 25



 

 

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��I�just�wanted�to�follow�up�the�discussion�that,�Michèle,�you�were�having�with�

Val�[Shawcross�AM]�about�the�idea�of�a�hub�airport.��As�I�understand�it,�effectively,�the�Davies�Commission�is�

talking�about�2030�and�so�it�has�ruled�out�the�need�for�a�hub�airport�by�2030.��However,�your�plan,�of�course,�

is�to�2050.�

�

Can�we�just�clarify?��Is�TfL�actually�still�in�its�forward�planning�looking�at�the�need�for�a�hub�airport�for�London�

in�2050,�in�35�years’�time�rather�than�in�simply�15�years’�time?��Of�course,�the�present�Mayor�and�one�of�the�

present�Deputy�Mayors�will�be�Members�of�Parliament�come�next�May�for�the�foreseeable�future�--�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��We�are�still�living�in�a�democracy.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��--�and�there�is�no�doubt�about�it,�they�will�continue�to�pursue�the�idea�of�a�hub�airport.��

How�is�TfL’s�planning�looking�at�that?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��TfL�has�two�roles:��we�have�been�

supporting�the�Mayor�in�his�aviation�policy�and�making�the�case�for�a�hub�airport,�which�we�believe�is�the�right�

solution�for�London�and�the�UK’s�needs;�we�also�have�a�responsibility�at�TfL�to�respond�to�the�proposals�that�

will�turn�up�on�the�table�in�terms�of�what�they�mean�for�surface�access�for�London.�

�

We�have�been�doing�both�roles.��We�have�been�identifying�-�if�there�were�to�be�an�additional�runway�at�

Heathrow�-�what�the�surface�access�implications�are�and�what�costs�are�associated�with�that�and�how�they�are�

attributed�to�the�airport.��Similarly,�for�Gatwick,�we�have�been�doing�the�same.��There�are�surface�access�

provisions�that�are�required�for�those�two�airports.�

�

However,�as�you�quite�rightly�say,�that�only�takes�us�to�2030,�based�on�[Sir�Howard]�Davies’�responses.��What�

we�are�concerned�about�is�what�happens�post-2030�in�terms�of�where�then�we�provide�the�infrastructure�

required�to�meet�the�demands�that�London�will�require.��Therefore,�the�whole�debate�is�not�finished.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��It�is�a�work�in�progress�looking�towards�2050.��Thank�you�very�much.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��We�are�not�clear�why�you�do�not�have�stuff�in�the�short-term�to�2030,�

more�details�on�stuff�that�is�needed�for�Heathrow�and�so�on�and�then,�if�it�is�the�vision�beyond�that,�you�think�

you�are�still�going�to�need�this.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):		We�have�stuff�about�Tube�upgrades�that�are�current.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Yes.��We�feel�there�needs�to�be�--�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�have�all�sorts.��We�have�the�

Piccadilly�line�upgrade,�which�is�going�to�be�of�use�with�a�50%�increase.�

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��I�just�want�to�make�the�point�that�there�is�a�pie-in-the-sky�idea�from�the�Mayor�for�a�

hub�airport,�but�we�have�a�reality�situation�with�what�is�happening�around�Heathrow�and�Gatwick.��TfL�shares�a�

responsibility�to�deal�with�the�reality�rather�than�deal�with�the�visionary�thinking�of�the�future.��What�is�your�

proposal�for�the�reality�of�the�situation�as�it�is�on�the�ground�now�and�why�is�it�not�in�the�document,�please?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��It�is�in�the�document�in�the�sense�

of�improvements�associated�with�access�to�Heathrow�such�as�western�access,�southern�access,�the�

Page 26



 

 

improvements�on�the�Piccadilly�line�and�the�connections�from�Crossrail�1�to�Heathrow.��They�are�all�in�there.��

We�recognise�also,�though,�if�Heathrow�does�expand�in�the�way�that�has�been�described,�there�will�be�some�

significant�improvements��

required�by�the�Highways�Agency�and�others�on�the�motorway�network.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��OK.��That�might�be�something�we�can�pick�up�in�our�response.�

�

Welcome,�Dr�Marshall.��Thank�you�very�much.��I�know�you�have�had�a�bit�of�a�transport�nightmare�coming�here�

this�morning,�but�you�are�very�welcome.��We�are�just�moving�into�a�section�that�I�know�we�will�have�questions�

for�you�on,�which�is�about�funding�the�Mayor’s�Infrastructure�Plan.���

�

Tom	Copley	AM:��Between�2021�and�2025,�capital�expenditure�is�going�to�need�to�double�to�£15�billion�

annually.��How�likely�is�it�that�this�will�be�achieved,�given�it�is�only�seven�years�away?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��It�is�a�big�challenge�in�terms�of�

how�we�fund�schemes.��As�I�said�earlier,�Crossrail�2�is�one�of�our�top�schemes�that�we�want�to�progress�

between�now�and�2030.��There�was�the�work�that�London�First�did�in�terms�of�how�it�can�be�funded�and�we�

are�doing�our�own�work�in�terms�of�how�it�can�be�funded.�

�

It�is�likely�to�need�additional�funding.��We�cannot�rely�on�Government�grant�because�that�is�not�going�to�be�a�

sensible�proposition,�but�it�will�require�additional�sources�to�be�considered;�as�will�any�other�schemes�we�are�

contemplating�at�present�such�as�the�Bakerloo�line.��What�we�are�saying�is�that�we�cannot�rely�solely�on�

Government�grants�or�just�on�fares�to�help�pay�for�these�schemes.��We�have�to�look�at�ways�in�which�other�

beneficiaries�from�these�schemes�can�contribute,�whether�it�is�through�business�rate�supplements,�through�the�

increased�value�associated�with�land�and�therefore�developers�and/or�businesses�or�through�some�of�the�other�

ideas�that�are�put�forward�in�the�Infrastructure�Plan�in�terms�of�devolved�taxes.��

�

Tom	Copley	AM:��Is�TfL’s�view�very�much�now�that�you�are�looking,�therefore,�increasingly�at�other�ways�of�

raising�funds?��Also,�how�likely�do�you�think�it�is�that�we�are�going�to�get�devolution�and�more�taxes�-�property�

taxes,�for�example,�or�even�maybe�income�taxes�-�given�the�debate�that�is�going�on�at�the�moment�about�

devolution�within�England?�

�

Also,�if�we�get�devolution�of�these�taxes,�there�then�come�all�sorts�of�extra�political�wranglings�within�London.��

Will�the�pressure�be�for�a�Mayor�to�decrease�taxes?��Will�the�pressure�be�for�a�Mayor�to�make�the�case�to�

increase�taxes�to�spend�funding�on�infrastructure?��It�would�be�a�bit,�I�suppose,�like�the�fares�arguments�we�

have�about�whether�or�not�you�raise�and�cut�fares.��What�do�you�think�the�challenges�are�there�and�how�likely�

do�you�think�it�is�we�are�going�to�get�these�powers?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��The�challenges�are�real.��They�are�

here�and�now.��I�talked�about�the�Bakerloo�line�extension�work.��We�are�starting�now,�but�in�order�to�help�pay�

for�it�we�need�to�understand�what�development�contributions�can�be�made�to�help�cover�the�costs�of�that�

scheme.��We�are�talking�about�a�£3�billion�scheme.��Therefore,�we�need�contributions�because�we�do�not�have�

the�money�in�our�business�plan�now�to�pay�for�that�and�we�are�not�going�to�get�the�money�from�the�

Government�to�pay�for�that.�

�

We�have�to�identify�these�new�ways.��We�have�to�look�at�the�Northern�Line�Extension�model�and�see�whether�

we�can�apply�that�to�other�parts�of�London.��In�the�case�of�the�Northern�Line�Extension,�it�is�the�actual�

business�rates�that�come�from�the�development�that�have�been�allowed�for�by�the�Northern�Line�Extension�and�

the�contributions�made�by�the�Community�Infrastructure�Levy�(CIL)�and�section�106,�which�will�cover�the�costs�

Page 27



 

 

of�the�Northern�Line�Extension.��For�all�the�schemes�in�London,�we�need�to�look�for�those�sorts�of�things�and�

more.��If�we�are�going�to�fund�the�sorts�of�schemes�we�have�identified�here,�it�is�the�“and�more”�that�we�have�

to�make�a�case�for.�

�

London�and�the�other�cities�-�Manchester,�Sheffield,�Leeds�-�are�all�asking�for�an�element�of�devolution�so�that�

we�have�more�confidence�in�having�a�steady�stream�of�income�with�which�we�can�pay�for�schemes.��That�in�

turn�gives�suppliers�a�more�uniform�set�of�projects�on�which�to�bid.��Therefore,�their�costs�can�be�brought�

down�and�made�more�uniform�because�they�know�the�supply�is�going�to�be�even.��That�will�help�us�in�terms�of�

delivering�the�proposals.�

�

Tom	Copley	AM:��Is�this�something�that�TfL�welcomes,�the�fact�that�actually�it�is�better�for�London�to�be�able�

to�raise�this�money�itself�rather�than�having�to�go�to�the�Treasury�every�time�it�needs�funding�for�things,�or�is�

there�a�danger�that�London�will�end�up�losing�out�to�other�parts�of�the�country�if�the�central�Government�grant�

is�cut�back?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��What�TfL�wants�and�what�lots�of�

people�and�businesses�want�is�certainty�in�terms�of�investment.��We�want�a�long-term�investment�plan.��Paris�

has�a�long-term�investment�plan�to�2030.��We�have�bits.��We�know�what�is�happening�over�the�next�five�years.��

We�would�like�to�know�what�our�investments�are�over�the�next�20�years�or�30�years.��Anything�that�is�going�to�

give�us�more�certainty�about�that�investment�and,�as�I�said,�the�knock-on�effect�in�terms�of�our�suppliers�is�

really,�really�important.�

�

Tom	Copley	AM:��What�about�extra�borrowing�powers�for�TfL?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�are�limited�in�terms�of�our�

borrowing.��In�terms�of�how�we�did�the�Northern�line,�we�did�not�borrow�the�money;�the�GLA�borrowed�the�

money.��If�there�are�extra�borrowing�powers,�then�obviously�we�need�to�ensure�that�we�have�the�means�by�

which�we�can�pay�back�those�monies�and,�therefore,�the�funds�and�the�funding�stream�is�always�going�to�be�

the�most�important�thing.��What�are�the�funding�streams�available�to�us?�

�

Tom	Copley	AM:��I�know�TfL�is�increasingly�looking�at�how�it�can�use�its�land�assets�and�other�assets�in�order�

to�create�value�from�development.��What�scope�is�there�or�what�leverage�is�there�to�generate�significant�

amounts�of�money�for�infrastructure�from�things�like�development?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Certainly�within�our�current�

business�plan,�there�is�an�assumption�about�the�additional�revenue�that�we�can�bring�into�the�business�plan�

from�our�commercial�development.��In�the�future,�when�we�look�at�things�such�as�Crossrail�2�where�we�are�

creating�stations�and�enhancing�stations,�improved�connectivity�with�higher�frequency�of�trains,�then�it�is�

looking�to�see�what�more�we�can�do�with�the�land�around�those�developments�--�

�

Tom	Copley	AM:��Capturing�uplift�in�land�value�and�things�like�that?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��--�that�either�we�own�or�other�

public�sector�bodies�own�or�National�Rail�owns�to�make�more�of�those�opportunities.��When�you�look�to�see�

what�some�transport�authorities�or�transport�businesses�do�in�other�countries�like�[Hong�Kong’s]�Mass�Transit�

Railway�and�the�East�Japan�Railway,�they�do�create�more�wealth�from�their�developments�than�certainly�we�in�

the�UK�do.�

�

Tom	Copley	AM:��Can�I�bring�Ian�in�on�any�of�these�points?��Do�you�have�anything�to�add�on�any�of�these?�

Page 28



 

 

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��It�is�a�serious�question.��I�have�felt�like�a�The�Big�

Issue�salesman�going�around�Docklands�trying�to�get�small�contributions�from�developers�and�it�is�usually�a�

small�proportion.��Even�with�Crossrail,�the�developer�contribution�was�small,�unless�it�is�very�specific�such�as�

the�Northern�line�to�Battersea.�

�

What�we�have�learned�from�the�Crossrail�business�case,�as�it�is�a�big�scheme,�was�to�try�to�come�at�it�from�the�

other�way�around.��What�are�the�benefits�of�Crossrail?��What�are�the�economic�benefits?��Quantify�those�

benefits�and�who�gets�those�benefits�and�then�design�a�scheme�to�fund�Crossrail�to�bring�those�benefits�into�

the�capital�scheme.��I�feel�as�though�our�transport�plan�should�be�basically�around�who�gets�the�benefits�from�

a�defined�plan,�which�we�will�perhaps�come�back�to.��I�would�do�it�the�other�way�around.�

�

However,�I�do�feel�that�just�going�around�trying�to�raise�development�benefits�is�very�localised.��The�target�is�

£400�million�for�the�whole�of�Crossrail�against�£15.7�billion�for�the�whole�scheme,�therefore�we�need�to�think�

about�a�base�plan�for�how�to�fund�it,�and�then�the�little�extras�like�stations�and�things�for�developments�go�on�

top�with�very�specific�funding.��If�they�put�the�money�up,�great;�if�they�do�not,�they�do�not�get�the�

infrastructure.�

�

Tom	Copley	AM:��It�is�about�making�sure�that�TfL�can�capture�the�benefits�of�these�things.�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��Crossrail�would�not�have�happened,�absolutely,�

unless�those�agglomeration�benefits�were�recognised�because�it�was�not�a�transport�scheme;�it�was�an�

economic�scheme�permitted�by�good�transport.�

�

Tom	Copley	AM:��Excellent.��Stephen,�do�you�have�anything�to�add�on�this?�

�

Dr	Stephen	Marshall	(Reader	in	Urban	Morphology	and	Planning,	Bartlett	School	of	Planning,	

University	College	London):��I�do�not�think�so�at�this�stage.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Let�us�move�on�to�some�of�the�transport�projects�that�are�in�the�

Mayor’s�Infrastructure�Plan.��

�

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��Thank�you�very�much.��I�will�pursue�that�by�asking�colleagues�what�they�would�like�to�

have�seen�in�the�Infrastructure�Plan�that�is�not�in�there.��I�will�open�that�up�because�that�is�always�an�

interesting�one.�

�

I�will�start�with�Michèle,�if�I�may.��We�have�spoken�at�length�about�the�financial�challenges,�the�limited�

envelope�and�how�monies�may�be�raised�for�future�projects.��What�I�do�not�see�in�the�Plan�is�prioritisation.��The�

Plan�is�led�by�three�main�principles.��We�have�heard�about�the�economy�and�the�increasing�population,�etc,�but�

have�you�any�thoughts�around�-�within�a�limited�budget�-�what�sort�of�prioritisation�TfL�and�the�Mayor�would�

be�inclined�towards�in�an�ideal�world?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��In�terms�of�prioritisation,�we�have�

schemes�prioritised�already�within�our�own�business�plan.�

�

To�just�remind�people�why�we�have�produced�the�Infrastructure�Plan,�we�have�produced�the�Infrastructure�Plan�

so�that�we�have�a�clear�idea�of�what�is�needed�by�2050�in�terms�of�the�scope�of�infrastructure�requirements�

and,�importantly,�what�the�cost�of�that�will�be.��We�can�then�make�judgements�and�decisions�about�how�we�are�

going�to�fund�it�and�therefore�what�new�funding�powers�and/or�regulatory�powers�are�required�to�deliver�on�it.��

Page 29



 

 

That�was�the�aspiration.��That�will�then�inform�a�series�of�subsequent�plans�and�revisions�to�the�plans�that�we�

have�already�in�order�to�get�there.�

�

Within�our�own�business�plan,�we�do�have�priorities�already.��Certainly�the�Tube�upgrade�is�still�a�priority,�

making�the�most�of�our�systems,�our�New�Tube�for�London,�and�we�have�far�more�better,�frequent�services�on�

our�Tube�with�improved�trains�and�improved�air-cooling�systems,�etc.��Making�the�most�of�what�we�have�is�

important�and�making�more�of�what�others�have.��As�I�said,�with�the�National�Rail�network,�we�have�aspirations�

for�greater�devolution.��We�have�the�West�Anglian�suburban�lines.��We�want�to�demonstrate�to�people�-�just�as�

Ian�[Brown]�has�demonstrated�with�the�Overground�to�date�-�how�we�can�transform�those�services.��There�is�an�

aspiration�to�do�more�of�that�because�it�is�relatively�lower�cost�than�some�of�the�investments�in�big,�new�pieces�

of�infrastructure.�

�

Crossrail�2�is�really,�really�important�and�is�prioritised�in�trying�to�take�it�forward.��As�I�said,�central�London�will�

get�more�congested�again,�even�after�all�the�improvements�we�are�finishing�off�now�are�in�place.��Importantly,�

because�we�are�talking�about�the�growth�of�the�city,�we�want�to�connect�up�areas�that�have�the�potential�to�

grow�-�particularly�the�Upper�Lee�Valley�-�and�getting�Crossrail�2�in�there.��Also,�there�are�big�problems�on�the�

South�West�Main�Line�with�trains�coming�into�London.��Crossrail�2�in�the�south�west�will�provide�a�big�solution�

to�that.�

�

River�crossings�is�another�package�of�measures�which�are�being�prioritised,�particularly�Silvertown,�which�we�

will�start�a�consultation�on�tomorrow�in�terms�of�how�we�can�relieve�the�problems�at�Blackwall�and�also�help�

support�growth�in�that�area.��There�are�a�whole�host�of�priorities,�as�Andrew�[Gilligan]�was�talking�about,�in�

terms�of�what�we�can�do�to�our�road�network�by�making�it�safer,�improving�it�and�making�it�better�for�cyclists,�

pedestrians,�buses,�etc.�

�

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��I�understand�it�is�quite�a�broad�statement,�although�there�are�some�gaps�and�I�will�get�

on�to�one�or�two�of�them,�predictably�enough,�in�a�minute.��Would�it�be�fair�to�say�that�much�of�the�

prioritisation�would�be�led�by�the�numbers�and�by�how�much�you�can�raise�the�money?��That�is�why�I�come�

back�to�-�and�apologies�for�this�-�the�airport�question.��Within�your�Infrastructure�Plan,�you�talk�about�a�hub�

airport�being�built�by�2029,�with�respect,�not�2050.��In�your�sums,�there�is�quite�a�large�slug�of�money�

predicated�on�that�said�hub�airport.��For�those�of�us�who�are�concerned�about�much�smaller�numbers�-�for�

example,�which�I�will�ask�you�about,�the�appearing�exclusion�of�all�tram�extensions,�because�it�says�“tram�

extensions”�in�the�plural�-�with�no�business�case�for�them,�that�logic�would�worry�us.��What�do�you�say�about�

the�fact�that�you�seem�to�be�predicating�finances�around�a�hub�airport�to�be�built�in�2029�to�the�exclusion�of�-�

and�I�am�very�excited�by�thoughts�of�this�-�perhaps�a�south�London�outer�metro,�which�again�is�something�we�

could�think�about?��How�do�you�tie�those�different�priorities�up�around�the�costing?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��It�is�not�a�case�of�whether�we�

have�the�money�for�them�and�whether�we�can�do�them.��It�is�a�case�of�need�and�how�we�can�help�to�get�the�

money�for�them.��If�we,�say,�take�the�Barking�Riverside�to�Gospel�Oak�extension,�it�is�because�there�is�a�need�

for�housing.��There�is�an�opportunity�to�build�11,000�homes,�but�they�have�to�have�a�public�transport�link�to�

enable�those�homes�to�be�built.��We�did�not�have�money�in�the�business�plan�for�that,�but�it�is�a�need�and�we�

have�identified�a�mechanism�by�which�we�can�take�that�forward�and�we�have�asked�the�Government�to�help�us�

take�that�forward.�

�

In�terms�of�the�south�London�trams,�there�are�a�lot�of�aspirations�for�Tramlink�extensions�and�there�are�varying�

business�cases�for�those.��We�have�no�money�in�the�business�plan�for�them,�certainly�not�in�the�front�end�of�

the�business�plan,�though�some�monies�might�be�available�to�us�at�the�latter�end�of�the�business�plan�period�in�

2022.��However,�we�have�to�ensure�that�they�are�good�value,�that�they�do�what�is�required�in�terms�of�

Page 30



 

 

enhancing�those�areas�and�that�there�is�a�further�contribution�that�can�be�made�to�help�fund�those�from�

development�associated�with�those�trams.�

�

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��I�know�colleagues�will�be�talking�about�the�Bakerloo�line�in�detail�very�shortly.��What�

concerns�me�particularly,�speaking�as�a�constituency�Member,�is�that�with�the�aspiration�around�the�Bakerloo�

line�extension,�which�does�not�seem�to�have�any�numbers�around�uplift�other�than�those�predicated�on�

Bromley�being�an�opportunity�area,�the�business�case�around�that�seems�suitably�vague.��We�seem�to�be�

putting�all�our�eggs�in�that�one�particular�basket,�which�is�good�for�that�line�-�Greenwich�and�New�Cross�and�

Bromley�-�and�by�that�we�seem�to�be�disqualifying�the�tram�extensions,�which�is�to�be�completely�regretted.��

However,�we�can�talk�about�that�another�time.��I�will�be�taking�that�up�with�the�Mayor.�

�

Ian,�can�we�talk�about�Crossrail?��I�am�excited�by�thinking�about�orbital�because�you�and�I�worked�together�and�

stood�and�celebrated�the�West�Croydon�Overground�a�couple�of�years�ago,�you�will�remember.�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��Yes.��The�thing�that�worries�me�about�this�priority�

business�is�that�TfL’s�business�plan�is�quite�well�defined�in�the�short�term�because�it�has�a�five-year�horizon,�

etc.��However,�in�the�long�term,�it�is�a�bit�more�of�a�series�of�choices�and�then�it�runs�out�at�about�2030,�yet�

the�Plan�says�2050.��Twenty-five�years�ago,�I�had�sold�my�first�Cortina,�I�think.��The�world�has�changed.�

�

What�it�lacks,�which�is�relevant�to�your�question,�is:�what�is�our�vision�for�this�city?��I�have�just�been�to�the�

United�States�to�talk�about�their�visions�in�New�York�and�Washington,�which�is�going�to�introduce�trams,�by�

the�way,�next�week.��Have�we�actually�looked�at�these�choices;�a�car-free�city,�for�instance,�versus�a�car�city?��

Those�sorts�of�choices�will�dictate�whether�you�want�to�put�a�dual�carriageway�around�the�South�Circular�and�

river�crossings.��If�you�decide�on�the�future�of�your�city,�you�can�start�to�rank�these�schemes.�

�

What�we�do�know�about�is�-�and�it�is�rightly�said�-�that�it�is�about�growth�of�the�economy�and�physical�growth�

in�London�and�the�need�to�do�better�on�the�environment.��Against�that�background,�rail�and�schemes�like�

Crossrail�and�links�to�the�airport�are�critical,�of�course.��Crossrail�has�come�as�10%�bite-size�chunks�of�the�

capacity�of�London�and�they�can�be�justified�if�they�are�justified�against�these�economic�benefits�and�transport�

is�integrated�into�them.��I�do�feel�that�a�second�Crossrail�linked�into�the�National�Rail�network�-�the�version�

that�TfL�is�going�for�from�the�south�west�to�the�north�east�-�is�a�critical�building�block.�

�

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��I�agree.��Crossrail�2�has�great�advantages�for�the�south�west�of�London�going�up�to�the�

north�east.�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��Yes.��If�you�think�about�that�with�Thameslink�-�and�

I�do�feel�as�though�we�have�to�think�about�Thameslink�a�lot�more�intelligently,�perhaps,�if�we�get�to�that�-�and�

Crossrail�2�and�this�and�then�an�orbital�-�and�I�have�the�old�orbital�diagram�for�the�last�ten�years�-�and�if�you�

think�then�about�that�as�a�city�which�is�totally�public�transport�available,�you�can�put�your�feeder�services�into�

that�equation�such�as�extensions�to�trams.��There�is�a�hierarchy�in�your�vision:�what�you�want�to�do�and�then�

the�bits�that�make�it�work?�

�

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��That�makes�an�awful�lot�of�sense�because�you�touched�upon�earlier�the�significant�

numbers�of�orbital�journeys�by�car,�which�are�very�hard�to�measure�even�with�TfL’s�systems.��That�is�a�sort�of�

hidden�constituency.��Many�people�who�might�get�up�in�Bromley�and�want�to�drive�across�to�Wimbledon�or�

wherever�might�go�by�tram�for�part�of�it,�but�many�do�travel�by�car.��That�is�why�we�need�to�address�that.�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��Absolutely.�

�

Page 31



 

 

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��Many�of�our�constituents�do�struggle�with�the�capacity�issue�going�into�town�on�the�

train�and�we�need�to�think�about�that�and�hopefully�the�Mayor,�through�devolution,�will�get�a�handle�on�that.�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��Yes.��I�am�very�keen�to�see�some�more�orbital�tram�

extensions,�but�I�think�the�Mayor�preferred�a�heavy�rail�solution.��It�is�quite�expensive�-�and�we�know�the�

geography�-�to�build�heavy�rail,�especially�around�the�south�of�London.�

�

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��Again,�as�I�touched�upon�earlier,�from�a�user�or�consumer�point�of�view�and�from�your�

members,�is�there�anything�that�leaps�out�that�is�actually�not�in�there�that�you�regret,�Alastair?�

�

Alastair	Willis	(Commercial	Manager,	Abellio	London):��From�an�operator’s�perspective,�and�certainly�

from�our�perspective�focusing�on�the�bus�side,�around�ensuring�infrastructure�to�deliver�the�increase,�there�is�a�

lot�of�focus�around�rail.��There�is�an�implication�that�the�likes�of�buses�will�be�required.��However,�from�an�

operator’s�side,�clearly,�you�need�to�allow�to�provide�for�that�to�operate�those�services.��The�wider�

infrastructure�can�support�that.�

�

For�example,�for�electric�vehicles,�there�is�a�focus�around�the�sustainable�nature�but�there�is�a�much�wider�

focus�than�just�having�areas�to�operate�those�vehicles�from�and�how�you�provide�for�that�as�part�of�the�wider�

strategy.��You�need�more�supply�to�deliver�that.�

�

There�is�also�an�interesting�one�around�what�passengers�want.��You�touched�on�people�doing�the�last�mile.��If�

you�do�want�to�go�into�Wimbledon�because�that�is�where�you�have�the�higher�focus,�how�do�you�provide�that�

to�ensure�you�can�provide�a�throughput�or�whole-journey�experience�that�meets�people’s�needs�and�hopefully�

brings�them�away�from�their�cars�so�that�you�can�prioritise�the�road�space�if�you�are�looking�at�buses�for�that�

area.�

�

For�my�approach,�looking�at�it�from�the�bus�side,�there�is�a�lot�of�focus�around�rail�and�potentially�some�of�the�

light�rail�side.��It�is�just�how�it�all�joins�together�to�provide�that�seamless�transport�option�for�passengers.�

�

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��You�are�absolutely�right.��We�talk�about�getting�people�out�of�their�cars.��We�all�aspire�

to�that.��Again,�going�back,�the�tram�is�that�model.��It�gets�people�out�of�their�cars.��It�goes�orbital.��People�

enjoy�it.��It�is�cost-efficient�to�deliver�on�the�sums,�comparatively�speaking.��

�

Joanne	Dodds	(Technical	Director,	Intelligent	Transport	Systems):��From�my�perspective,�there�is�not�as�

much�focus�as�I�would�like�on�technology.��We�have�talked�about�sharing�other�systems�like�the�heavy�rail�and�

things�like�that,�but�really�we�are�living�in�an�age�now�when�we�all�have�devices.��I�walked�here�from�the�City�

today�using�my�phone�to�guide�me�where�to�get�to,�for�example.��I�did�see�a�lot�of�other�people�doing�that.��It�

uses�satellite�navigation�(satnav)�whether�you�are�on�your�bike�or�in�a�vehicle.�

�

It�includes�freight�as�well.��For�example,�I�know�that�there�are�lot�of�freight�journeys�when�someone�comes�in�in�

their�truck�to�deliver�a�load�and�finds�the�loading�bay�is�busy.��They�go�around�the�block�and�then�they�come�

back�again.��We�can�manage�those�kinds�of�things�to�reduce�the�journeys�much�better�through�technology�and�

particularly,�therefore,�more�co-operative�information�technology�systems�across�all�modes.�

�

It�could�also�be�used�to�encourage�modal�shift�as�well�because�you�could�say,�“Did�you�know�this�journey�

would�have�been�so�much�quicker�if�you�had�walked�or�if�you�had�gone�on�the�bus?”,�for�example.�

�

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��Ian,�any�shortfalls�there?�

�

Page 32



 

 

Dr	Stephen	Marshall	(Reader	in	Urban	Morphology	and	Planning,	Bartlett	School	of	Planning,	

University	College	London):��Thanks.��I�am�not�representing�any�particular�constituency�here�--�

�

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��No,�I�know�that.�

�

Dr	Stephen	Marshall	(Reader	in	Urban	Morphology	and	Planning,	Bartlett	School	of	Planning,	

University	College	London):��--�but�just�looking�over�the�various�issues�here,�Ian’s�point�was�very�important,�

the�point�about�the�vision�and�where�you�are�starting�from.��A�document�that�looks�as�far�forward�as�2050�is�a�

major�opportunity�to�start�thinking�about�these�changes.��The�document�is�very�useful�in�acknowledging,�in�a�

sense,�the�unpredictability�of�the�future.��We�do�not�know�what�it�is�going�to�be�like.��If�we�consider�back�to�

what�the�world�looked�like�in�the�1970s�and�1980s�or�thereabouts�and�how�we�could�have�predicted�the�rise�in�

various�forms�of�travel;�who�could�have�predicted�pedicabs,�taxis�and�gondolas�over�the�Royal�Docks,�for�

example,�in�the�city�of�2014?�

�

However,�in�terms�of�the�question�about�the�things�that�one�might�like�to�see�brought�out,�one�of�the�areas�

that�I�am�involved�with�is�more�on�the�planning�and�design�side.��It�is�very�important.��The�discussion�of�spatial�

location�and�density�is�mentioned�at�various�points�and�it�would�be�interesting�to�see�different�kinds�of�density�

because�density,�as�we�know,�is�a�controversial�topic�that�can�be�measured�in�different�ways.��For�example,�are�

we�talking�about�accentuating�transport�hubs?��Should�there�be�a�Shard�at�every�London�terminus,�every�Tube�

station�and�so�on?��Should�the�increase�in�density�be�spread�more�at�a�mid-level�across�more�of�central�London�

and�so�on?��There�are�various�issues�that�are�really�important�to�do�with�location�and�density�that�help�dictate,�

as�the�report�suggests,�how�transport�would�serve�it�and�how�we�can�help�to�shape�that.�

�

Personally,�I�would�be�interested�to�see�more�detail�on�how�provision�for�walking�and�other�forms�of�human-

propelled�transport�could�be�made.��I�could�not�find�it�exactly�here,�but�there�is�a�reference�to�needing�a�step-

change�in�provision�and�so�on.��It�may�be�possible�to�imagine�what�a�step-change�would�be�like,�for�example,�

on�the�airports�front,�like�a�new�hub�airport,�but�what�would�a�step-change�be�in�terms�of�pedestrian�

provision?��Would�we�be�talking�about�large-scale�pedestrianisation�or�rolling�out�further�priority�routes�for�

walking�or�even�walkways�in�the�City�of�London�if�we�are�going�to�have�increased�density?�

�

There�are�a�whole�lot�of�possible�solutions.��Although�all�of�these�cost�money,�there�is�a�balance�between�how�

much�those�would�cost�and�the�cost�of�a�road�closure�to�get�it�in�proportion�and�perspective,�especially�given�-�

I�would�just�add�-�the�importance�of�the�health�benefits�of�walking�modes�of�travel.��I�do�not�know�if�we�will�be�

coming�on�to�that�later,�but�I�would�just�like�to�flag�that�up�as�an�issue�because,�of�course,�it�is�an�issue�to�do�

with�health�and�other�budgets�and�so�on.�

�

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��Yes,�indeed.��OK.��That�was�very�helpful.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��Just�a�very�quick�one.��TfL�-�and�I�do�not�normally�defend�it,�as�Michèle�[Dix]�will�

know�from�our�years�together�-�has�an�excellent�report�and�actually�has�members�of�the�health�team�from�here�

co-located.��Actually,�there�are�two�reports�almost�covering�entirely�what�you�have�just�talked�about.��They�

both�have�stuff�about�Legible�London�and�about�making�it�clear�to�people�how�much�quicker�it�is.��I�do�not�

want�to�waste�time�in�this�particular�meeting,�but�if�you�are�interested�there�are�two�reports�that�are�actually�

already�embedded�in�TfL’s�plans�on�increasing�walking�in�London.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Some�of�that�should�be�in�this�Infrastructure�Plan.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��The�point�is�that�it�is�what�you�put�in.��These�are�much�quicker.��Michèle�[Dix]�can�

answer�on�those,�but�those�are�much�quicker�than�2050.��The�point�is�that��

Page 33



 

 

walking�is�over�the�next�five�years,�as�opposed�to�this,�which�is�much�longer.�

�

Dr	Stephen	Marshall	(Reader	in	Urban	Morphology	and	Planning,	Bartlett	School	of	Planning,	

University	College	London):��If�I�may�just�come�back,�for�example,�this�is�great�stuff�but�in�a�sense�the�

question�is�about�prioritisation.�

�

Victoria	Borwick	AM:��The�point�is�that�this�is�longer�term�and�walking�has�a�much�shorter-term�delivery�

timeline.��The�difference�is�you�can�write�a�book�that�covers�everything�for�one�year,�two�years�or�three�years,�

but�actually�this�infrastructure�is�a�longer-term�objective�and�that�is�what�we�are�talking�about�because,�

actually,�that�is�the�future.��The�points�you�have�just�made�and�the�things�you�suggested�are�much�shorter-

term�delivery.��Sorry,�Michèle�[Dix].��You�must�speak.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��I�think�Stephen�[Marshall]�was�making�a�different�point�to�you,�in�fact,�

Victoria.��We�have�Stephen’s�point�that�in�the�infrastructure�long�term�we�might�want�to�look�at�that.�

�

Dr	Stephen	Marshall	(Reader	in	Urban	Morphology	and	Planning,	Bartlett	School	of	Planning,	

University	College	London):��Thank�you.��Yes,�that�was�it.1�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	AM	(Chair):��Richard,�did�you�have�anything�you�wanted�to�pick�up�on�this?�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Yes,�I�did.��On�the�one�point,�there�has�been�quite�a�lot�of�criticism�of�the�‘R25’�project,�

as�it�seems�to�have�been�named,�that�it�is�over-ambitious,�over-costly�and�so�on.��There�have�been�some�

suggestions�I�have�read�that�perhaps�you�could�achieve�much�of�it�by�extending�the�Overground.��Ian,�you�are�

the�great�expert�on�the�Overground,�as�we�know,�the�‘father�of�the�Overground’.��What�do�you�feel�about�

that?��Do�you�see�some�potential�for�extension�of�the�Overground�to�achieve�the�same�things�as�this�metro�

R25?�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��It�depends�on�the�vision�of�the�R25�and�if�it�is�a�

pure�R25.��It�is�quite�hard�to�find�a�railway�alignment�that�has�value�for�money.��If�you�think�about�it�as�a�

doughnut�-�ie�the�inner�Overground�we�have�now�-�and�then�think�of�a�wider�range�taking�in�places�like�

Croydon,�Bromley�and�Wimbledon�in�the�north�and�put�in�a�whole�series�of�linkages�-�like�extending�the�

Docklands�Light�Railway�to�a�key�point,�say,�at�Catford�or�talking�about�the�Croydon�Tramlink�doing�more�to�

other�centres�there�-�and�if�you�go�for�that�sort�of�vision,�I�can�see�a�way�of�doing�it.�

�

The�harder�one�is�to�say�we�should�just�have�an�M25,�which�is�built�in�a�greenfield�area,�of�course,�and�is�much�

further�out.��It�should�be�within�two�or�three�miles,�possibly�five,�of�the�Overground�system�so�that�journeys�

can�be�made�around�that�and�around�the�Overground�and�between.��It�will�address�that�issue�about�whether�

every�journey�can�be�done�by�public�transport�as�a�choice,�other�than�from�central�London.��Yes,�it�can�be�

done,�but�it�does�need�the�Overground�in�terms�of�expansion.��We�need�to�think�about�the�Southeastern�

trains,�the�Thameslink�inners,�South�Central�and�South�West�[routes]�under�our�control�or�under�TfL’s�control�

to�be�planned�to�do�that,�which�is�a�different�focus.�

�

                                                 
1��Following�the�meeting,�Dr�Marshall�gave�the�following�clarification:�“this�point�indeed�relates�to�long�term�infrastructure�provision.�
For�example,�if�we�are�to�have�a�‘large�scale�pedestrianisation’,�or�‘walkways’�(ie�elevated�walkways�as�in�the�City�of�London),�or�a�
step-change�in�‘provision�for�walking�and�other�forms�of�human-propelled�transport’�(ie�priority�routes�or�dedicated�infrastructure�for�
anything�from�wheelchairs�and�pedicabs�to�roller-blades,�etc),�then�this�would�be�a�long-term�infrastructure�project�needing�to�start�
now.��Prioritisation�of�such�schemes�could�derive�not�only�from�their�transport�benefits�(ie�justification�via�transport�budgets),�but�
health�benefits�(ie�justification�via�health�budgets),�etc.”�

Page 34



 

 

Richard	Tracey	AM:��Yes.��That�is�another�objective�we�have,�as�you�well�know.��Michèle,�do�you�see�the�

arguments�for�actually�extending�the�Overground�and�linking�with�the�Overground�in�the�way�Ian�[Brown]�

speaks�of,�rather�than�setting�out�and�building�some�completely�new�R25�railway?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Yes,�exactly,�and�that�is�what�is�in�

the�2050�Plan.��In�terms�of�a�brand�new�railway,�we�have�not�drawn�conclusions�by�not�testing�these�things.��

We�have�tested�some�of�the�new�R25.��We�have�tested�it�in�different�forms�and�we�have�tested�it�by�making�

different�assumptions�about�the�densification�of�town�centres�and�putting�more�jobs�in�those�locations.�

�

Even�though�there�are�lots�of�car�trips�in�outer�London,�they�are�not�going�to�the�same�place.��They�are�not�

going�necessarily�into�town�centres�that�are�forming�hubs.��They�are�going�across�town�centres.��They�are�

going�all�over�the�place.��There�is�still�always�going�to�be�a�role�for�car�travel�when�it�does�not�make�sense�[to�

use�public�transport].��If�someone�is�going�from�A�to�B�and�if�you�put�a�bus�in�there�or�a�public�transport�

network�in�there,�there�is�only�one�person�going�from�A�to�B.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	AM	(Deputy	Chair):��Cycling�provision?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��You�let�them�go�from�A�to�B�by�

car,�but�you�want�them�to�go�in�a�very�clean,�cost-efficient�car.�

�

However,�in�terms�of�looking�at�outer�London,�as�I�say,�we�have�tested�grand�schemes�and�we�could�not�justify�

them,�even�if�we�densified�the�town�centres�greatly.��We�have�also�tested�the�sort�of�scheme�that�Ian�[Brown]�

has�talked�about,�which�is�referred�to�in�the�2050�Plan�and�which�is�almost�making�use�of�bits�of�infrastructure�

that�we�have�there�already�and�joining�some�of�the�dots.��It�is�not�going�to�give�us�a�whizzy�service�all�the�way�

around,�but�it�is�going�to�enable�some�people�to�move�from�a�car�to�public�transport�and�provide�some�of�the�

connections�that�people�are�talking�about.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��We�heard�from�Joanne�that�she�would�prefer�some�sort�of�connectivity�like�that.��Would�

that�meet�the�objectives�you�were�looking�at�for�your�connectivity?��Would�it�persuade�you�to�travel�around?�

�

Joanne	Dodds	(Technical	Director,	Intelligent	Transport	Systems):��It�would,�yes.��I�have�lived�in�

London�before.��I�lived�in�Harrow�and�worked�in�Epsom�and�I�used�to�go�out�to�the�M25�and�around�and�then�

back�in,�as�well�as�my�journeys�now�that�I�do.��This�is�why�I�was�thinking�it�would�be�of�benefit�to�people�who�

live�in�London�and�externally�as�well�to�improve�that�connectivity.�

�

One�of�the�things,�though,�that�is�missing�in�the�extra�sense�to�make�things�more�efficient�is�that�information�

flow�to�people.��We�are�talking�about�grand�civil�engineering-type�investments�here,�but�of�course�we�need�to�

enable�people�to�make�those�choices�and�to�use�these�systems�better.��We�live�in�an�information�age�and�we�

need�to�have�that�connectivity�to�help�people.��For�example,�today�I�went�wrong�because�the�satnav�signal�to�

my�phone�was�bouncing�off�all�the�buildings.��It�is�a�big�problem�that�you�have�in�London�if�you�want�to�have�

mobile�information�to�people.��We�need�that�to�be�addressed�to�do�the�last�bit�of�the�journey�either�side.��It�is�

not�necessarily�a�transport�issue,�but�I�believe�the�Transport�Committee�should�be�supporting�a�

communications�committee�or�something�to�actually�improve�that�information�availability.�

�

Steve	O’Connell	AM:��Chair,�can�I�make�just�one�last�comment?��The�tension�here�is�practicality�against�

vision.��In�other�words,�Ian�[Brown]�is�quite�rightly�talking�about�the�vision�of�transport�fifty�years�hence�and�

having�a�plan�that�is�dictated�by�that.��Thereby,�you�are�going�to�get�big�schemes�that�may�be�critical�and�a�

potential�route�all�the�way�around,�which�may�or�may�not�happen,�against�practicality,�which�is�the�joining-up-

the-dots�piece�that�people�can�touch�and�feel�and�understand�and�it�will�cost�an�amount�within�a�limited�

Page 35



 

 

budget.��The�tension�that�you�have�and�the�pressure�the�Mayor�has�in�delivering�the�Plan�is�how�he�balances�

the�visionary�piece�-�and�you�could�cite�the�airport�debate�around�that�as�well�-�against�the�practicality�piece�-�

and�again,�I�could�cite�the�example�of�Gatwick,�which�is�more�practical�-�within�a�limited�budget.��What�do�you�

deliver?�

�

The�Overground�is�a�good�example.��The�Overground�joining�the�dotted�lines�with�the�tram�would�give�that�

orbital�vision�and�link,�compared�with�building�a�whole�new�route.��Actually,�the�man�on�the�Wimbledon�

omnibus�would�say,�“That�is�never�going�to�happen.��Why�do�we�not�do�something�practical?”��It�is�practicality�

against�the�vision.��Thank�you,�Chair.�

	

Richard	Tracey	AM:��The�other�thing�I�wanted�to�ask�about�is�Crossrail�2�because�we�are�all�pursuing�this�

objective�of�Crossrail�2�as�hard�as�we�can.��I�wonder�if�you�can�tell�me,�Michèle,�how�much�further�are�you�in�

specifically�deciding�about�the�tunnel�component�of�Crossrail�2,�particularly�the�entrance�at�the�south�end�of�

the�tunnel�which�concerns�a�good�many�of�my�constituents�in�Wimbledon?��At�some�point�we�believed�maybe�

the�opening�would�be�south�of�the�Wimbledon�main�line�station�and�now�there�is�some�talk�of�it�possibly�being�

north�of�the�Wimbledon�main�line�station.��Can�you�clarify�for�me?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director	of	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Where�we�are�is�we�have�just�

finished�the�consultation�on�the�options�for�the�route.��Some�variants�were�put�on�the�table�that�we�have�

investigated.��The�Mayor�will�be�reporting�back�in�early�November�in�terms�of�which�options�we�will�seek�to�

safeguard�and�we�will�be�safeguarding�a�route�then.��Safeguarding,�as�you�know,�means�that�those�areas�will�

then�get�referred�to�if�anyone�wants�to�try�to�develop�in�those�areas.�

�

We�will�then�be�doing�more�detailed�design�in�terms�of�what�the�stations�would�look�like,�where�the�station�

entrances�would�be,�where�the�portals�would�be,�etc.��That�work�will�be�done�in�far�greater�detail�over�the�next�

year,�subject�to�us�safeguarding�a�route.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��You�have�not�actually�decided�on�the�portal�yet?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�have�got�locations�for�portal�but�

we�will�--�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��I�see.��Options?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��That�still�will�be�subject�to�further�

consultation�on�the�detail�next�year.��The�main�purpose�of�what�we�have�been�doing�is�going�from,�“Do�we�

need�a�metro�scheme�or�do�we�need�a�regional�scheme?”��We�have�concluded�a�regional�scheme�is�going�to�

give�us�better�value�for�money�and�be�a�better�scheme�for�all�sorts�of�reasons.��We�need�to�decide�on�a�route�

so�we�can�safeguard�it�because�Chelsea�to�Hackney�needs�safeguarding.��It�is�a�refresh�of�an�old�safeguarding�

which�is�what�we�are�responding�to.��We�will�safeguard�the�route.��We�will�continue�to�do�much�more�detailed�

engineering�work�whilst�we�then�also�build�up�a�case�to�take�to�Government�to�make�an�ask�for�as�much�money�

as�we�can�get�to�develop�the�scheme.��That�ask�will�also�include�how�we�see�funding�the�scheme�going�over�

and�above�Government�grant.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:��When�do�you�think�we�might�have�a�bit�more�certainty�on�such�things�as�the�portal?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Next�summer.�

�

Page 36



 

 

Richard	Tracey	AM:		Next�summer.��There�are,�of�course,�many�people,�businesses�especially,�and�the�

massive�centre�court�in�Wimbledon,�that�are�very�concerned�about�that.��I�do�not�want�to�bring�it�down�to�--�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	(Chair):��Let�us�not�go�into�that�detail�now.��We�have�got�an�assurance�and�we�will�

pick�that�up�next�year.�

�

Richard	Tracey	AM:		Next�summer.��Thank�you�very�much.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	(Chair):��Let�us�move�onto�a�specific�project�which�consultation�is�out�on�at�the�

moment,�the�proposed�extension�of�the�Bakerloo�line�south�which�brings�a�smile�to�many�of�our�faces.���

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��There�is�certainly�a�lot�of�interest�in�the�expansion�of�the�Bakerloo�line.��Michèle,�could�

you�just�outline�what�you�see�as�the�main�benefits,�and�the�business�case�for�extending�it?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��The�Bakerloo�line�extension�is�a�

scheme�that�we�have�been�looking�at,�alongside�other�schemes,�to�improve�connectivity�into�south-east�

London.��If�you�look�at�the�Mayor’s�transport�strategy�not�only�does�it�identify�Crossrail�2�as�a�scheme�that�is�

needed�for�the�future,�it�identifies�the�need�to�better�connect�the�south-east�into�central�London.��We�have�

been�looking�at�Docklands�Light�Railway�(DLR)�extensions,�further�improvements�to�the�Overground,�and�the�

Bakerloo�line�extension�in�different�forms.��What�we�have�concluded�in�terms�of�that�improved�connectivity,�

that�the�Bakerloo�line�extension�would�offer�us�more�benefits;�not�only�in�terms�of�assisting�in�that�

connectivity�between�places�such�as�Bromley,�but�also�in�helping,�particularly�in�the�context�of�the�2050�Plan,�

to�open�up�areas�for�further�growth.��We�know�we�have�got�to�find�more�locations�for�houses�and�for�

development.��If�we�are�able�to�extend�the�Bakerloo�line�so�we�can�serve�more�areas,�open�up�those�areas,�then�

that�will�be�advantageous.���

�

As�you�know,�we�are�consulting�on�the�route�with�a�number�of�options.��At�this�stage�we�want�to�understand�

people’s�response�to�the�principles�of�extending�the�Bakerloo�line�and�the�different�options�that�are�on�the�

table.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Firstly�just�to�look�at�the�funding�option.��You�are�not�expecting,�or�indeed�even�

asking,�for�funding�from�central�Government�for�this.��Are�you�looking�solely,�however,�at�getting�the�money�

from�redevelopment�along�the�route,�or�are�you�looking�at�options�to�capture�the�inevitable�uplift�in�land�

values�that�would�happen�along�the�route?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�have�not�got�funding�for�the�

Bakerloo�line�extension�within�our�business�plan.��We�have�got�monies�to�do�the�development�work�that�we�are�

doing.��We�have�not�got�funding�to�implement�it.��If�we�are�to�implement�it�by�2030�we�need�to�find�new�ways�

of�funding�it.��That�does�not�mean�we�will�not�ask�Government,�it�is�whether�or�not�Government�says�yes�or�no.�

�

Picking�up�on�Ian�[Brown’s]�point,�which�I�agree�with,�the�extension�will�actually�benefit�three�groups�of�

people.��It�will�benefit�users�of�the�system,�fare�payers.��It�will�benefit�developments�along�the�route,�in�terms�

of�enhancing�their�value.��It�will�also,�in�turn,�benefit�taxpayers�because�it�should�increase�the�contribution�to�

GDP�within�the�UK.��Therefore�you�would�expect�the�sources�of�funding�to�come�from�those�three�sources,�not�

necessarily�in�equal�chunks.��What�we�have�not�been�very�good�at�in�the�past,�and�we�certainly�need�to�get�

better�at,�is�what�chunk�can�we�get�from�development�and�business�in�terms�of�the�contributions�that�they�

pay,�and�how�we�can�capture�that?��We�will�be�looking�to�see�whether�or�not�there�are�far�greater�

opportunities�for�extracting�value�from�the�developments�that�can�take�place�along�whichever�route�is�--�

�

Page 37



 

 

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Would�it�all�be�from�new�developments,�or�would�there�be�options�for�capturing�some�

of�the�funding�from�existing�properties,�business�and�so�on?��I�remember�when�I�sold�my�old�flat,�as�a�result�of�

the�DLR�extension�being�built�it�virtually�more�than�doubled�overnight�through�nothing�I�had�done.��The�public�

sector�had�paid�for�the�DLR�and�I�got�a�huge�boost�in�my�bank�account.��Is�there�not�an�obvious�case�for�

actually�capturing�some�of�that�unearned�windfall�that�people�accrue�from�new�transport�developments?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):		Not�specific�to�the�Bakerloo�line�

extension�discussion,�but�certainly�to�the�discussion�generally�in�terms�of�how�we�can�fund�these�schemes.��

How�that�is�captured�is�one�of�the�things�that�people�are�talking�about.��In�the�London�First�work,�which�was�

about�Crossrail�2�but�equally�could�apply�to�other�schemes,�the�proposal�was�whether�or�not�there�is�a�means�

of�capturing�that�through�stamp�duty.��If�the�value�of�someone’s�house�has�gone�up,�then�stamp�duty�goes�up.��

How�can�you�ring-fence�that�to�help�pay�for�some�of�the�schemes�which�have�helped�the�price�of�property�go�

up�and�hence�the�stamp�duty�go�up?��We�do�need�to�look�at�those�things.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��I�think�that�case�absolutely�needs�to�be�put.��Given�the�timescale�of�the�Bakerloo�line,�I�

would�not�have�thought�this�was�too�soon�to�be�starting�to�get�that�on�the�agenda�rather�than�simply�looking�

at�the�redevelopment�options�as�the�only�source�of�funding.���

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��All�sources,�yes.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��I�would�urge�that�you�begin�making�the�case�for�capturing�some�of�the�windfall�

increase�through�stamp�duty.��I�think�that�has�got�to�be�something�that�is�looked�at.���

�

If�we�can�move�on�now�to�the�different�route�options,�I�have�long�been�a�supporter�of�extending�the�Bakerloo�

line,�indeed�a�number�of�years�ago�I�chaired�a�transport�scrutiny�for�Lewisham�Council�and�extending�the�

Bakerloo�was�one�of�the�key�recommendations�there.��Could�you�just�go�through�some�of�the�pros�and�cons�of�

the�different�options,�just�to�help�us�at�this�stage?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�have�not�set�out�the�pros�and�

cons�of�the�different�options�within�the�leaflet.��We�are�seeking�people’s�responses�to�those.��We�put�the�

proposal�on�the�table,�as�I�said,�to�improve�connectivity�between�the�south-east�and�central�London�so�that�we�

can�open�up�those�areas.��The�different�route�options�serve�different�areas.��In�the�case�of�the�Old�Kent�Road�

route�it�would�allow�more�opportunities�for�serving�that�opportunity�area�that�has�been�identified�there.��If�it�

goes�the�other�way�then�it�is�serving�existing�areas�which�want�improved�connectivity.��We�put�the�consultation�

out�there�for�people�to�respond�to�on�the�basis�of�their�own�concerns.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Thank�you.��I�have�had�concerns�expressed�to�me�about�the�impact�on�the�existing�

route�should�the�extension�go�ahead�beyond�Lewisham.��Have�you�thought�through�some�of�the�implications�

of�that�at�this�stage?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):		Yes,�we�have�done�work�in�terms�of�

looking�at�the�impact,�particularly�on�the�National�Rail�services�on�the�Hayes�Line.��How�that�will�be�affected?��

Six�trains�an�hour�that�currently�run�on�that�route�would�be�replaced�by�Bakerloo�line�trains�which�would�be�up�

to�15�trains�per�hour,�and�more�depending�on�the�route�options�that�are�provided.��Overall,�there�will�be�

improvements�for�journey�times�for�people�getting�into�central�London.��There�will�be�a�group�of�users�going�

into�Cannon�Street�who�will�be�required�to�make�a�change�that�they�do�not�make�at�present,�but�we�have�been�

working�closely�with�the�boroughs�in�terms�of�sharing�figures�about�how�those�journey�times�will�be�affected.��

Overall�it�is�an�improvement.�

�

Page 38



 

 

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Thank�you.��Finally,�on�timescale,�can�you�just�say�something�about�the�likelihood�of�

completing�the�Bakerloo�line�extension�by�the�early�2030s?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Totally�dependent�on�being�able�to�

fund,�or�find�funding�mechanisms,�to�pay�for�it.��It�is�not�in�our�business�plan.��We�also�want�to�do�the�Bakerloo�

line�upgrade�first�so�all�the�improvements�associated�with�the�upgrade,�signalling�etc,�can�be�just�rolled�out�

straight�onto�the�extension.��We�are�talking�about�a�scheme�that,�subject�to�those�things,�we�would�have�done�

by�the�early�2030s.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Thank�you.��Do�any�of�the�other�guests�today�want�to�comment�on�the�Bakerloo�line�

plans?�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��Yes.��The�Bakerloo�line�has�always�had�an�inferiority�

complex�and�needs�somewhere�to�go;�it�is�an�obvious�thing.��Elephant�&�Castle�is�a�big�development�area�and�

certainly�it�needs�to�serve�that�properly.��There�is�also�a�Thameslink�route�through�Elephant�&�Castle�and�it�

needs�to�integrate�with�that�properly.��Whether�replacing�the�Hayes�Line,�with�its�ten�car�capacity�and�National�

Rail,�with�a�Bakerloo�line�train�is�the�right�answer�I�doubt�actually.��The�bit�that�we�have�not�mentioned�though�

is�Thameslink.���

	

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Sorry,�just�on�the�Hayes�Line�issue,�the�issue�for�you�would�be�capacity?��Even�though�

frequency�would�improve�you�would�be�concerned�about�the�loss�of�capacity?�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��No.��I�think�that�needs�to�be�looked�at,�there�is�an�

issue�of�capacity�along�that�corridor�which�is�rightly�identified.��The�scheme�we�are�not�talking�about�in�that�

context�is�Thameslink.��Thameslink�has�got�a�scheme�at�St�John’s�for�Lewisham,�for�instance,�a�£55�million�

grade-separated�junction�to�run�onto�precisely�those�routes.��The�Thameslink�specification�is�a�complete�dog’s�

breakfast,�as�everybody�around�this�table�knows.��If�we�recognise�Thameslink�should�be�a�long-distance�

service,�serving�Gatwick�and�Luton�etc,�as�well�as�a�suburban�service;�and�then�look�at�Thameslink�along�that�

corridor,�in�conjunction�with�these�options,�you�might�get�the�right�answer.��I�do�not�think�just�a�substitution�

network�rail�down�to�Hayes,�but�there�are�other�options,�is�the�right�answer,�and�there�are�cheaper�ways�of�

doing�it.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Your�big�message�today�is�that�it�needs�to�be�looked�at�in�a�wider�context,�not�simply�

about�the�Bakerloo�line.�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��I�think�the�demand�is�right.��There�are�solutions�to�

it,�including�these�National�Rail�solutions�and�DLR,�but�I�would�say�that,�would�I?�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��That�is�very�helpful.��Thank�you.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Thank�you�very�much.��Yes,�there�is�quite�a�lot�of�excitement�

south�of�the�river�about�the�Bakerloo�line�extension.��To�continue�that�conversation�really,�I�think�we�all�accept�

and�we�understand�now�that�for�high-capacity�schemes,�the�way�they�are�funded�now�and�in�the�future,�is�

going�to�be�because�there�is�‘developable’�land�along�the�route.��However,�in�looking�at�the�logic�of�the�routes�

that�have�been�suggested,�if�it�is,�for�example,�the�case�that�the�Old�Kent�Road�alignment�is�much�more�

fundable�from�development�sources,�it�still�leaves�places�like�Camberwell�and�places�in�that�area�left�hanging.���

�

I�would�like�to�know�if�TfL�are�going�to�look�at�what�could�be�done�for�the�unsuccessful�competitors�along�

those�routes.��Even�if�there�is�not�development�land,�in�Camberwell�for�example,�there�is�nonetheless�a�growing�

Page 39



 

 

population�and�a�growing�need�for�high-capacity�transport.��Would�you�be�looking,�for�example,�at�things�like�

complementary�projects�such�as�reopening�the�old�station�at�Camberwell�on�the�line�between�Elephant�&�

Castle�and�Loughborough�Junction?��Or�is�there�just�going�to�be�winners�and�losers�from�this�consultation?��

Are�you�going�to�look�at�what�else�could�be�done?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��I�think�in�the�context�of�2050�what�

we�are�seeking�to�do�is�enhance�public�transport�across�the�piece,�whether�it�is�specifically�in�this�corridor�or�

elsewhere.��We�are�aware�that�improvements�are�required�all�over�the�place.��One�of�the�things�that�we�keep�on�

saying�that�we�want�to�do�though�is�make�greater�use�of�the�National�Rail�network,�because�we�feel�

particularly�on�some�of�the�lines�it�is�an�under-utilised�bit�of�network.��As�we�were�talking�earlier,�whether�or�

not�you�can�join�the�dots�to�make�more�use�of�that�network,�whether�it�involves�opening�new�stations�or�not,�it�

is�something�which�was�very�much�in�the�MTS.��It�is�something�that�is�still�very�much�in�the�2050�Plan.��How�

do�we�use�a�bit�of�infrastructure�that�is�there�already�to�better�serve�some�of�those�areas?��If�we�are�able�to�

demonstrate�that�with�the�West�Anglia�lines�that�we�have�got,�increased�frequencies,�cleaning�things�up,�

staffing,�etc,�etc,�would�make�a�big�difference�then�hopefully�we�can�get�access�to�more�of�those�lines.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��May�I�just�quickly�ask�you�a�question�about�how�the�consultation�

will�work?��Clearly�there�is�enthusiasm�in�some�areas,�Southwark�and�Lewisham.��The�noises�I�am�hearing�from�

Bromley�are�much�more�mixed.��Bromley�Council�has�always�had�a�focus�on�the�existing�town�centre�really,�

although�it�has�not�been�a�borough�that�has�gone�for�much�development�to�be�frank.��It�has�not�seen�itself�as�

a�regeneration�zone.��If�Bromley,�for�example,�just�walked�away�and�said,�“No,�we�do�not�want�to�play�with�

this;�this�is�not�our�aspiration”�would�that�completely�destroy�the�business�case�for�the�routing�options�for�the�

rest�of�the�service�going�through�Lewisham�and�Southwark?���

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�are�talking�about�

[implementing]�a�plan�[for�the�BLE]�that�is�for�2030.��However,�we�are�talking�about�an�Infrastructure�Plan�for�

2050.��We�are�also�talking�about�needing�to�find�ways�in�which�more�housing�can�be�located�in�London.��I�

think�one�of�the�gentlemen�over�there�referred�to�densification�and�the�fact�that�we�cannot�just�---�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��That�is�what�I�am�saying�to�you.�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Yes.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Bromley�does�not�see�itself�as�a�borough�that�is�intensifying.��What�

happens�to�the�upstream?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��No,�but�if�London�is�to�grow�and�

accommodate�the�people�that�are�being�born�now,�and�those�of�us�that�will�live�longer�and�still�be�here,�then�

we�have�got�to�look�to�some�of�our�town�centres�in�accommodating�some�of�that�growth.��If�the�Bakerloo�line�

extension�will�help�accommodate�some�of�that�growth�that�is�a�policy�decision�to�be�discussed.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Does�it�fall�over�if�Bromley�do�not�support�the�scheme?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�have�to�look�at�what�is�needed�

for�London.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��All�right,�you�are�not�going�to�answer.�

�

Page 40



 

 

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��There�are�two�things:�the�

densification�of�town�centres,�and�how�they�might�contribute�towards�helping�pay�for�the�scheme�in�the�first�

place.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Thank�you.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	(Chair):��That�is�great.��Thank�you�very�much.��Let�us�move�to�something�

Joanne�[Dodds]�was�touching�on�a�bit�earlier�about�transport�innovations�in�the�Plan�and�use�of�technology.���

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��I�just�want�to�look�at�the�impact�of�transport�innovation�on�London’s�transport�

systems.��Do�you�have�any�ideas�about�this?��I�am�talking�particularly�of�things�like�driverless�cars,�impact�of�

the�solar�pavements,�or�other�technologies�which�I�am�not�even�aware�of�and�you�can�tell�us�about.�

�

Joanne	Dodds	(Technical	Director,	Intelligent	Transport	Systems):��Driverless�cars,�yes,�fantastic.��We�

have�all�seen�the�Google�car�driving�around�and�things�like�that.��The�trouble�is�it�is�in�a�very�surreal�

environment�that�does�not�really�fit�if�you�look�at�the�environment�of�London,�or�probably�most�city�centres,�

most�places�in�the�world�actually.��However,�the�important�thing�to�recognise,�I�think,�really�is�actually�we�are�

on�a�journey�to�get�there�eventually.��Eventually�we�will�be�going�around�in�Minority�Report�type�things�but�

there�is�a�long�way�to�go.��There�is�always�that�transition�where�you�have�got�the�old�cars.��We�have�still�got�

classic�cars�on�the�road,�and�how�do�you�put�the�technology�in�them?��How�do�you�get�that�integration�with�all�

of�the�other�modes�of�transport,�and�all�the�random�people,�dogs�and�things�like�that,�that�run�out�into�your�

road?��How�do�you�actually�get�that�working;�not�just�for�the�road�area�itself�but�equally�to�get�people�to�use�

the�public�transport�more�effectively,�or�sustainable�transport?��I�see�these�things�all�being�as�one.�

�

The�key�thing�for�me�here,�and�I�would�like�to�draw�an�analogy�to�your�house,�everyone’s�home.��These�days�if�

you�were�building�a�new�home�you�would�not�dream�to�not�put�plugs�or�sockets�in,�would�you,�and�not�have�

electricity�all�around�the�house�in�different�places.��You�do�not�know�when�you�put�that�in�what�gadgets�you�

are�going�to�have�in�five�or�ten�years’�time.��I�only�got�a�tablet�a�couple�of�years�ago�and�I�put�my�wiring�in�a�

long�time�ago.��To�me�this�is�where�there�is�the�idea�of�having�an�equivalent�of�an�electricity�circuit,�or�

communications�platform,�is�really�important.��We�do�not�necessarily�know�what�is�going�to�come�up�in�the�

future,�but�we�know�that�we�are�going�to�need�to�communicate�with�it.��We�know�we�need�to�have�accuracy�in�

terms�of�where�we�are,�so�that�we�make�sure�when�we�are�on�our�transport�journeys�we�take�the�right�turnings�

in�places.��We�need�to�encourage�third-party�individuals�to�actually�develop�the�systems�for�the�end-users.���

�

The�key�thing,�I�think,�for�transport�operators,�like�TfL,�is�to�actually�provide�that�information�about�the�

transport�and�still�to�manage�the�transport�as�effectively�as�they�can.��A�conversation�with�TomTom�[satnav�

manufacturers],�for�example,�they�said,�“You�don’t�need�sensors;�we�have�got�all�of�the�sensor�information”.��

Then�they�could�not�answer�when�I�said,�“What�if�the�police�close�a�road�because�there�is�an�accident?��All�your�

TomTom�sensors�are�going�to�say�that�road�is�clear�and�free�for�everyone�to�use,�and�actually�be�directing�

people�towards�the�closed�road”.��That�is�the�kind�of�thing�to�actually�help.��Not�necessarily�having�a�vision�

about�specific�things,�but�providing�that�platform�that�will�allow�of�these�innovations�to�come�forward�in�the�

future.�

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��I�am�told�that�the�Government�is�offering�£10�million�to�three�cities�in�England�to�test�

out�driverless�cars.��Is�TfL�minded�to�apply�for�this�grant�to�have�driverless�cars�in�London?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�are�not�bidding�for�that�pilot.��

We�recognise�that�technology�can�help�in�London.��I�think�many�of�the�points�that�Joanne�[Dodds]�has�made�

about�certainly�improving�real-time�data�to�passengers,�whatever�mode�they�are�in,�is�really�important.��I�think�

Page 41



 

 

TfL�are�at�the�forefront�in�rolling�that�data�out.��We�have�opened�our�data�to�all�sorts�of�different�app�

developers�who�have�developed�some�amazing�apps�for�all�people�to�use.��We�are�doing�much�more�on�our�

public�transport�than�any�other�provider.��We�are�doing�more�on�our�road�networks�to�make�sure�they�are�

better�managed�to�the�full.��Going�back�to�my�point�about�making�the�most�of�the�systems�that�we�have�got,�it�

is�fundamental�in�our�plans.��We�do�recognise�that�come�2050�the�world�may�be�a�different�place�and�all�the�

autonomous�vehicles�that�are�spoken�about�-�and�some�people�say�these�are�going�to�be�on�the�roads�in�five�

years’�time�and�others�will�say�20�years’�time�-�we�have�to�develop�our�plans�acknowledging�that.��I�agree�with�

Joanne’s�point�about�making�sure�that�we�can�adapt�to�them�as�necessary.�

�

Even�with�all�those�new�technologies�being�envisaged,�that�does�not�take�away�the�need�for�additional�

infrastructure�which�is�what�this�Plan�is�about.��Whether�it�is�infrastructure�for�broadband,�or�infrastructure�for�

more�electricity�or�whatever,�what�are�the�infrastructure�needs,�and�what�are�the�transport�infrastructure�needs�

to�help�support�that?���

�

When�we�have�talked�about�provision�for�additional�road�space,�and,�yes,�we�are�seeking�to�encourage�as�many�

people�as�possible�to�use�public�transport�and�all�our�forecasts�show�less�and�less�people�will�be�using�

car-based�transport�and�more�and�more�will�be�walking,�cycling�and�using�public�transport.��There�will�still�be�

some�users�on�the�road.��We�know�currently�80%�of�all�trips�in�London�are�made�on�the�road�network,�be�it�

somebody�in�a�bus,�somebody�in�a�taxi,�someone�on�a�bike,�someone�walking,�a�freight�vehicle,�someone�in�a�

car.��Roads�will�be�important�because�there�is�not�enough�road�space�for�all�those�demands�on�the�surface.��

Andrew�[Gilligan]�was�talking�about�how�you�make�London�more�liveable,�certainly�for�cyclists�and�pedestrians.��

The�conflicts�that�exist�between�road-users�at�present�are�such�that�we�do�need�to�provide�some�additional�

space.��When�we�are�looking�at�the�provision�of�that�new�space�we�are�looking�at�it�in�two�ways.��What�would�

you�need�if�it�was�just�for�conventional�vehicles,�as�we�know�them�today?��Also,�what�would�you�need�if�you�

were�looking�at�new�types�of�autonomous�vehicle�that�could�drive�closer�together,�that�in�theory�could�be�

smaller,�that�would�be�electric�and,�in�the�case�of�the�tunnels�that�we�are�looking�at,�would�not�require�

ventilation�shafts�or�would�not�require�as�many?���

�

We�are�thinking�about�the�future.��I�think�given�the�scale�of�problem�that�we�have�in�central�London�doing�a�

pilot,�perhaps,�in�central�London�is�not�the�best�starting�point.��We�are�very�much�watching,�learning,�keeping�

in�contact�with�all�the�academics�who�are�working�on�this,�the�Department�for�Transport�and�European�

partners,�in�understanding�how�it�is�developing.�

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��Do�you�see�things�like�solar�highways�and�kinetic�pathways�generating�new�energy?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�put�them�in�the�2050�Plan�

because�these�are�things�that�are�in�existence.��Therefore�again,�as�with�the�autonomous�vehicles,�we�have�to�

be�mindful�that�these�things�may�come�along�and�not�bury�our�head�in�the�sand�and�think�we�can�only�develop�

things�as�we�know�them.���

�

The�most�important�thing�is�information.��Being�able�to�get�that�information�out�in�a�way�that�is�personalised�

in�many�ways,�so�that�when�people�come�to�the�city�they�are�informed�about�how�best�to�travel.�

�

The�other�thing�not�to�forget�is,�in�terms�of�our�innovation,�making�sure�that�the�systems�we�have�got�are�

comfortable.��Cooling�the�Tube�is�a�really�big�innovation.�

�

Dr	Onkar	Sahota	AM:��Thank�you.�

�

Page 42



 

 

Joanne	Dodds	(Technical	Director,	Intelligent	Transport	Systems):��The�solar�pavements�point�you�

made,�that,�to�me,�is�particularly�to�address�how�safe�and�secure�people�feel�to�use�the�transport.��I�see�that�as�

being�the�primary�benefit�of�that,�rather�than�alleviating�congestion.��Sorry�if�Michèle�[Dix]�and�I�are�skirting�

around�that�a�bit,�but�it�is�a�side-benefit,�if�you�like.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	(Chair):��Thank�you�for�that.��Let�us�move�on�to�tackling�some�of�the�road�

congestion�issues.��

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Thank�you�very�much.��Do�you�know�I�have�to�confess�it�is�one�of�

the�projects�that�is�in�here�and�when�I�looked�at�it�I�thought,�“Is�that�really�just�a�bonkers�eye-catching�project�

for�media�management�purposes�or�is�there�anything�substantial�behind�it?”��It�is,�of�course,�the�new�Inner�

Orbital�Tunnel�at�a�cost�of�£15�to�£25�billion�that�is�canvassed�in�here.��Was�there�a�study�or�any�fundamental�

research�that�suggested�we�needed�a�project�for�a�road�tunnel�in�that�way?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Yes,�the�Roads�Task�Force.��The�

Roads�Task�Force�looked�at�all�the�ambitions�to�make�London�more�liveable.��To�provide�for�additional�walking,�

to�provide�for�additional�cycling,�to�provide�for�all�the�additional�public�transport.��Also�to�provide�for�all�the�

needs�that�are�out�there�already,�with�schemes�like�Vauxhall,�schemes�like�Elephant�and�Castle.���

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Was�there�a�research�study�done�looking�at�it?��Has�it�been�in�any�

way�modelled?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��In�terms�of�the�demands,�yes,�as�

part�of�the�Roads�Task�Force.��What�that�work�did�was�to�put�all�the�ambitions�that�boroughs�and�others�alike,�

right�across�London,�want�for�London�to�be�more�liveable�in�terms�of�the�use�of�the�road�space�and�said�if�you�

did�all�those�things,�and�you�did�nothing�else,�then�you�would�basically�introduce�large-scale�congestion�in�

central,�inner�and�outer�London.��Therefore,�this�is�what�the�Roads�Task�Force�concluded,�if�you�want�that�

ambition�to�be�fulfilled,�and�people�do,�then�you�have�to�think�of�a�way�to�manage�that�congestion.��The�

things�that�they�proposed�that�we�looked�at�in�response�to�that�was�providing�more�space,�which�is�providing�

more�road�space,�managing�the�demand�in�a�different�way,�looking�for�24/7�usage�of�the�road�network�which�

is�looking�for�a�greater�use�of�the�road�network�at�night,�particularly�in�the�case�of�goods�vehicle�deliveries�--�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Yes,�but�this�particular�project�--�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��--�and/or�pricing.��In�terms�of�

looking�at�the�management�of�the�road�space�and�the�options.��Then�we�did�a�piece�of�work�for�the�Roads�

Task�Force�looking�at�ways�in�which�a�provision�of�new�space,�in�the�form�of�tunnels,�could�actually�help�

alleviate�that�congestion.��That�then�informed�us�to�go�and�do�a�piece�of�work.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��I�am�having�difficulty�understanding�how�the�modelling,�which�

would�create�a�large�amount�of�new�road�space�and�obviously�need�feeder�roads�and�tunnels�and�construction�

all�over�very�densely�developed�areas�of�London,�would�reduce�congestion�when�in�fact�it�would�invite�more�

traffic�into�central�London.��I�am�having�difficulty�understanding�the�concept�of�how�this�additional�major�

motorway�under�the�ground,�and�all�the�feeder�roads�it�would�need�to�get�up�to�the�surface,�would�reduce�

traffic.��It�looks�to�me�like�a�scheme�for�bringing�more�traffic�into�London.�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��It�is�relocated�capacity.��Certainly�

lots�of�schemes�have�been�drawn�up�over�the�years�for�taking�Marylebone�Road�and�Euston�Road�and�reducing�

Page 43



 

 

the�traffic�on�that�so�it�could�become�a�vastly�improved�environment.��It�is�the�traffic�on�that,�where�will�it�go�

instead?��If�you�relocated�it,�it�is�not�additional�traffic�it�is�relocated�traffic.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Since�all�the�other�major�infrastructure�projects�are�funded�by�

growth�intensification,�more�houses,�more�jobs,�how�does�moving�the�traffic�from�the�surface�to�underground�

generate�the�billions�of�pounds�that�it�would�cost�to�do�this�scheme?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Because,�in�theory,�if�you�can�move�

some�traffic�from�the�surface�underground�then�you�can�create�some�additional�opportunities�for�more�

development�on�the�surface.��You�are�not�giving�all�that�space�over�to�people�to�walk,�cycle,�use�public�

transport.��You�are�opening�up�that�area�for�new�development.�

�

What�we�have�agreed�to�do�is�do�the�feasibility�study�to�understand�whether�or�not,�if�there�was�a�tunnel�

under�the�ground,�where�the�portals�would�be,�how�much�it�would�cost.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��This�project�has�made�it�into�this�vision�document�without�having�

had�a�feasible�study�done?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��It�has�made�it�into�the�vision�

document�on�the�basis�of�the�findings�of�the�Roads�Task�Force�in�the�sense�that�if�we�are�going�to�reduce�

congestion�--�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��You�said�that,�the�Roads�Task�Force.��Michèle,�do�forgive�me.��We�

are�short�of�time,�I�am�really�sorry�about�this.��What�is�your�likely�timescale�for�development�for�this�

underground�wonder?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Coming�back�with�a�report�on�it�or�

actually�being�able�to�--�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Building�it,�because�it�says�2050,�this�is�one�of�the�things�you�

want.�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Yes,�it�is�one�of�the�schemes�that�is�

on�the�agenda�in�terms�of�delivering�more�liveability�in�London.��It�would�be�one�of�the�schemes�that�is�

post-2030.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Post-2030?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Yes.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��OK�then.��Road�pricing�is�something�we�have�had�divisions�about�

in�this�chamber�before.��I�think�everybody�accepts�congestion�charging�has�been�very�successful.��What�do�you�

think�about�the�potential�opportunities�for�using�congestion�charging�tools�for�other�developments�to�manage�

things�like�road�bridges�and�other�traffic�schemes?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Certainly,�and�this�was�in�the�Roads�

Task�Force,�any�new�Orbital�Tunnel�that�we�might�look�at�we�would�also�look�to�see�whether�or�not�you�could�

have�a�charge�on�it�so�that�you�could�help�manage�the�use�of�that�by�changing.��We�have�also�said�that�for�the�

tunnels�that�we�are�looking�at�in�east�London.��In�terms�of�provision�of�new�space�for�river�crossings,�we�have�

Page 44



 

 

said�that�if�we�were�going�to�provide�that�space�(a)�to�help�pay�for�them,�and�(b)�to�also�manage�the�traffic�on�

them,�we�would�consider�charges.���

�

In�terms�of�road�pricing�more�generally,�it�is�referred�to�in�the�report�as�a�means,�certainly�of�helping�manage�

traffic,�but�also�as�a�means�for�helping�raise�funding.��Particularly�with�vehicles�being�more�fuel�efficient,�and�

fuel�duty�and�vehicle�excise�duty�potentially�going�down,�there�is�an�opportunity�to�try�to�capture�those�whilst�

the�value�still�exists�and�turn�that�into�a�price�per�kilometre�travelled�mechanism�as�a�means�of�capturing�value�

and�managing�traffic.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��You�see�it�as�an�investment�source?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��Both�sources.��As�I�say,�the�Roads�

Task�Force�specifically�asked�that�we�look�at�new�capacity�to�help�address�congestion�and/or�more�radical�

means�of�managing�demand,�including�road�pricing.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Thank�you.��I�do�not�know�if�any�of�our�colleagues�want�to�

comment�on�this?�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	(Chair):��Yes.��Stephen�[Marshall],�particularly�from�an�academic�point�of�view.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��Do�you�think�we�could�be�doing�more�to�make�use�of�congestion�

charging?�

�

Dr	Stephen	Marshall	(Reader	in	Urban	Morphology	&	Planning,	Bartlett	School	of	Planning,	

University	College	of	London):��I�think�it�comes�back�partly�to�what�we�were�saying�before�about�what�the�

objectives�are.��Also,�I�think,�in�terms�of�the�spatial�aspect�of�which�areas�of�London�you�would�be�talking�

about.��Are�we�talking�about�individual�sections�of�infrastructure�like�a�tolled�route?��Or�are�we�talking�about�

zones,�different�zones,�outer,�inner?��Also,�I�guess,�the�impact�on�different�users�and�the�distributional�aspect.��

Also�what�the�revenues�would�be�used�for,�whether�it�was�being�ring-fenced�for�some�particular�aspect.���

�

If�I�might�also�just�bring�in�the�issue�of�parking?��I�do�not�know�whether�it�is�something�you�would�be�wishing�

to�discuss�but�I�wondered�if�there�might�be�any�links�to�how�parking�is�controlled,�and�how�parking�is�a�

management�demand�tool�as�well.��It�might�sit�alongside�some�of�these�other�issues,�including�technologies�as�

well�which�I�was�going�to�bring�in,�in�terms�of�reducing�congestion�by�reducing�the�need�for�circulating�traffic�

looking�for�parking�spaces.��Looking�at�the�wider�package�of�how�these�fit�in�together.���

�

I�think�there�are�a�number�of�issues�there�but�it�depends�on�the�priorities�really�of�what�the�purpose�is.�

�

Valerie	Shawcross	CBE	(Deputy	Chair):��It�would�be�fair�to�say�that�any�strategy�for�congestion-type�

charging�ought�to�follow�the�Plan�in�terms�of�supporting�what�you�are�trying�to�deliver,�I�think�is�what�you�are�

saying.��Yes,�thank�you.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	(Chair):��Thank�you.���

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Yes,�on�this�very�point.��There�is�the�issue�about�using�tolls�on�specific�bits�of�

infrastructure�tunnels�or�whatever.��There�is�the�wider�case�as�well�about�a�more�sophisticated�form�of�road�

pricing�which�would�replace�all�tolls,�which�could�replace�the�congestion�charge�and�have�a�much�more�flexible�

approach�on�different�roads�at�different�times�of�the�day�and�so�on.��How�much�modelling�has�TfL�done�on�

Page 45



 

 

looking�at�that�sort�of�more�sophisticated�road�pricing?��I�know�there�is�still�a�commitment�to�it�in�your�

Transport�Strategy,�in�spite�of�the�current�Mayor’s�scepticism�of�it.��How�much�actual�work�has�been�done?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��TfL�did�a�lot�of�work�on�different�

forms�of�road�pricing�about�2006-7�in�terms�of�London�wide�pricing,�different�charges,�different�technologies.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��You�have�not�been�allowed�to�do�any�more�work�on�since�then?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��We�have�acknowledged�it�in�the�

2050�Plan�and�say�the�work�we�are�doing�as�part�of�the�Roads�Task�Force�is�understanding�the�role�different�

mechanisms�can�play�in�addressing�congestion.��Also�the�reason�why�we�want�to�do�this�is�so�that�London�is�

more�liveable.��The�ambition�is�to�have�a�more�liveable�London,�one�where�you�can�walk,�cycle,�use�public�

transport�and�deliver�goods�and�services�in�a�pleasant�environment.��If�you�just�take�the�space�that�you�have�at�

present�and�allocate�it�to�all�those�users�you�cannot�expect�the�rest�of�the�traffic�to�disappear.��It�does�not�

disappear�unless�you�make�some�provision�for�it.��What�we�are�saying�is�that�we�are�looking�at�both:�the�

addition�of�additional�supply�and�other�demand�management�measures.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��The�previous�studies�that�you�have�commissioned�on�road�pricing,�are�they�all�

published�and�available?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��I�think�so�because�it�was�part�of�

what�was�in�those�days�called�a�Transport�Innovation�Fund�(TIF)�submission.��It�was�a�few�years�ago.�

�

Darren	Johnson	AM:��Could�you�check�that?��I�think�now�this�is�really�starting�to�come�onto�the�agenda.��I�

think�any�work�that�TfL�has�done�in�the�past�on�this�I�think�it�would�be�valuable�to�have�that�in�the�public�

domain,�if�it�is�not�already.��Thank�you.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	(Chair):��Technology�has�moved�on�considerably�in�that�time.���

�

Navin	Shah	AM:		The�Mayor�has�pledged�a�new�fund�of�£75�million�to�speed�up�delivery�of�step-free�

stations,�I�think�there�are�about�six�of�them,�with�joint�match�funding�from�local�authorities�and�developers.���

�

Given�this�situation,�would�it�be�realistic�that�the�Plan�looks�at�a�scope�for�actually�speeding�up�the�whole�

completion�of�100%�of�public�transport�journeys�by�making�step-free�stations�by�2050?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��There�is�an�ambition,�as�you�know,�

to�improve�it.��With�the�investments�we�make,�and�the�additional�investments�that�Mike�Brown�[Managing�

Director,�London�Underground�and�Rail,�TfL]�referred�to�the�other�day�is�to�get�to�40%�of�journeys�being�

step-free.��We�will�need�to�find,�as�with�all�these�things,�more�additional�funding�mechanisms�so�that�we�can�

make�more�of�the�journeys�step-free.��In�some�instances�some�of�the�stations�are�just�going�to�be�too�difficult�

to�make�everything�100%�step-free.��Where�we�can�we�are�doing�more.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:		The�vision�currently�for�2050�goes�up�to�two-thirds.��There�is�a�huge�argument�for�making�

all�facilities�step-free�for�obvious�reasons�like�economic�growth,�which�we�mentioned�before,�where�we�have�

got�opportunity�areas�and�so�on;�and�a�larger�population,�younger�as�well�as�an�older�population�who�would�

benefit�from�step-free�access.��This�is�something�which�I�do�believe�should�be�a�priority�when�we�look�at�the�

Infrastructure�Plan.���

�

Page 46



 

 

Also�what�concerns�me�is�that�at�the�moment�the�whole�strategy�for�step-free�access�in�terms�of�prioritising�

seems�to�be�ad�hoc.��Is�there�some�kind�of�route�map�by�which�you�are�actually�prioritising�the�whole�of�the�

network�which�then�can�feed�into�the�Infrastructure�Plan�or�the�immediate�plan�that�you�have,�like�the�Mayor’s�

current�funding?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��In�terms�of�step-free�access�

certainly�making�the�bus�step-free�access,�in�terms�of�the�buses�themselves�and�the�bus�stops,�that�will�be�

100%�step-free�so�there�will�be�a�step-free�access.��The�taxis�are�totally�step-free.��You�are�talking�about�the�

Underground?�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:		Yes.��Underground�and�Overground�stations.�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��With�the�Overground,�the�DLR,�it�is�

easier�for�us�to�make�those�improvements�because�of�the�depth�or�height�of�stations.��The�difficulty�is�with�

some�of�the�existing�Underground�stations�and�the�depth�of�those�stations,�being�able�to�get�people�down�to�

the�platforms�in�those�environments.��We�are�not�committing�to�100%�for�that�reason,�because�it�will�be�very,�

very�difficult�to�do�so.���

�

We�produced�a�report,�the�Transport�Accessibility�Plan,�which�was�a�plan�that�followed�the�Mayor’s�Transport�

Strategy�which�set�out�the�ambition�for�making�the�network�step-free,�and�importantly�looking�at�the�

difference�in�journey�times�between�origins�and�destinations.��Whether�or�not�you�had�to�make�a�step-free�

journey�versus�not�making�a�step-free�journey,�our�ambition�is�to�narrow�the�gap�between�those�two�sorts�of�

journeys�so�that�it�was�no�greater�than�25%.��That�means�making�improvements�strategically�across�the�

network�so�you�can�bring�that�gap�right�down�because�that�is�the�important�thing.���

�

What�we�are�also�concerned�about�is�where�you�have�got�locations�which�not�only�will�help�people�who�might�

be�wheelchair�users�etc,�but�also�locations�where�by�making�step-free�access�available�you�are�helping�the�

elderly,�people�with�buggies,�you�are�helping�people�with�luggage.��We�are�trying�to�maximise�opportunities�for�

getting�as�many�more�people�able�to�make�journeys;�as�well�as�looking�across�the�piece�to�reduce�this�gap�

between�making�journeys�by�step-free�modes�or�step-free�uses�versus�step-free;�non-step-free�versus�

step-free.���

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��The�question�is�a�valid�one�and�there�is�no�excuse�

for�the�industry�not�dealing�with�it.��The�reason�we�are�not�dealing�is�twofold.��One,�innovation.��If�ever�there�

was�an�example�of�where�you�could�put�innovation�in�it�is�in�this�area.��The�Tube�is�quite�difficult,�as�Michèle�

said.��National�Rail�is�also�difficult,�but�it�is�covered�in�rules�about�application�of�access,�the�Access�Rules.��

Basically�from�a�train�operator�or�network�rail’s�point�of�view�it�is,�“I�have�got�to�do�all�this�and�it�is�going�to�

cost�£50�million,�I�cannot�do�it”.��If�we�went�for�some�innovation�and�partial�change�to�the�rules�to�make�

partial�step-free�access�and�all�sorts�of�things�like�that,�you�could�change�the�rules�to�make�it�available�for�a�lot�

of�people.��The�thing�is�that�all�the�operators�are�nervous�or�improving�marginally�because�you�have�to�go�all�or�

nothing�because�of�the�legislation.��An�urgent�look�at�legislation�so�we�can�make�material�short-term,�value�for�

money�improvements�would�unlock�that.��I�mean�that�from�the�heart.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:		Can�there�be�some�form�of�incremental�approach�to�this?�

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��Yes.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:		Your�aim�would�be�to�provide�fully�accessible�step-free�but�in�the�interim,�for�whatever�

reasons,�go�for�a�measure�which�will�part�of�the�way�provide�the�solution?�

Page 47



 

 

�

Ian	Brown	CBE	(international	transport	consultant):��Yes.��Things�like�corners,�the�curvature.��If�you�have�

got�a�curved�railway�you�cannot�really�put�some�step-free�access�in.��You�try�to�rebuild�Clapham�Junction�on�

that�basis,�you�cannot�do�it.��You�can�make�one�point,�such�as�the�Harrington�Hump�as�London�Underground�

did,�and�just�to�do�one�little�bit.��Where�you�have�got�staff�stations�you�can�bring�those�to�bear�to�help�people.��

There�is�no�excuse�for�this�at�all.���

�

Navin	Shah	AM:		Dr�Marshall,�do�you�want�to�comment�on�this?�

�

Dr	Stephen	Marshall	(Reader	in	Urban	Morphology	&	Planning,	Bartlett	School	of	Planning,	

University	College	of	London):��I�do�not�have�anything�specific�on�the�Tube�but�I�will�just�bring�up�the�issue�

of�hopefully�the�agenda�for�improving�street�facilities�for�step-free�access�and�those�with�wheeled�mobility.���

�

Navin	Shah	AM:		One�last�question,�if�I�may?��This�very�approach�to�funding�whereby�you�are�substantially�

relying�on�local�authorities,�as�well�as�developers,�to�contribute;�looking�at�the�£75�million,�for�example,�

funding�announced�recently.��It�talks�about�match�funding�from�these�two�sources.��We�know�that�local�

authorities�are�strapped�for�funds.��Developers�will�only�do�what�suits�them.��OK,�you�might�get�some�money�

from�a�CIL�but�then�you�have�got�social�infrastructure�and�other�priorities�local�authorities�have.��This�gives�me�

a�great�cause�for�concern�that�even�this�current�programme�you�have�to�expedite�step-free�access�may�not�

happen�for�a�much,�much�longer�period.��Is�this�not�a�fallacy,�and�you�should�actually�be�looking�at�better�and�

more�reliable�sources�of�funding�than�the�current�approach�you�have?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��I�think�we�have�to�look�at�all�

sources�of�funding.��If�we�can�make�our�money�help�deliver�a�scheme�with�a�developer�because,�as�I�say,�it�is�

just�not�for�people�in�wheelchairs�but�it�is�for�the�elderly�and�we�are�all�getting�older,�the�age�of�the�population�

is�going�to�increase,�then�it�will�be�in�developers’�interest�to�ensure�that�older�people,�people�with�buggies�etc�

can�access�improvements.��I�think�it�is�working�together�with�those�developers�in�locations�where�we�can�make�

these�things�happen.��There�is�an�opportunity�to�make�them�happen,�particularly�putting�lifts�in�within�the�

development�that�is�taking�place�in�order�to�provide�access�to�the�station.��It�is�not�just�about�the�money,�it�is�

about�the�physical�opportunities�for�doing�these�things�as�well.�

�

Navin	Shah	AM:		We�will�leave�it�there.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	(Chair):��Lovely,�thank�you.��I�think�it�is�about�the�ambition;�

�we�were�hoping�to�see�in�the�Plan.��Finally,�just�very�factually,�Michèle,�if�you�could�just�clarify�what�the�next�

steps�are�for�this�Plan?��I�think�we�have�highlighted�quite�a�lot�of�issues,�potential�weaknesses,�this�morning�

and�obviously�we�will�be�putting�in�a�submission.��What�is�the�role�going�to�be�of�this�London�Infrastructure�

Delivery�Board�in�taking�it�forward,�and�what�are�the�next�steps�for�this,�please?�

�

Michèle	Dix	(Managing	Director,	Planning,	Transport	for	London):��As�I�say,�the�Plan�was�produced�in�

order�to�identify�the�infrastructure�needs�and�the�costs�associated�with�it�so�that�one�could�actually�start�then�

looking�to�see�that�we�have�got�a�means�of�funding�these�things.��It�also�identified�that�looking�at�

infrastructure�across�all�the�aspects�reported�in�the�2050�Plan,�such�as�water�provision,�energy�provision,�there�

needs�to�be�greater�synergy�between�infrastructure�providers�so�that�where�you�can�do�things�together,�help�

reduce�the�cost,�become�more�efficient,�then�there�is�a�meeting�of�minds�and�ideas.��The�Delivery�Board�is�to�

help�ensure�that�infrastructure�can�be�delivered�in�a�more�cost-effective�way,�and�to�bring�those�other�

infrastructure�providers�into�the�room�to�talk;�people�like�TfL,�who�are�delivering�on�one�side,�with�the�

boroughs,�with�the�utilities�etc.��It�is�a�Board�to�help�take�the�Infrastructure�Plan�forward�and�to�consider�some�

of�the�aspects�that�are�raised�in�here�about�prioritisation.��It�will�also,�having�been�set,�help�establish�a�

Page 48



 

 

framework�for�the�subsequent�revisions�that�will�be�required�to�(a)�the�London�Plan�and�(b)�the�Mayor’s�

Transport�Strategy�etc.��They�take�us�to�2030�and�we�need�to�have�more�detailed�strategic�plans�to�take�us�to�

2050.�

�

Caroline	Pidgeon	MBE	(Chair):��Lovely,�thank�you�very�much.��It�has�been�a�very�interesting�discussion.��I�

think�it�raises�lots�of�questions�in�our�mind�so�maybe�not�everything�has�been�answered.��Thank�you�

Michèle�[Dix],�Ian�[Brown],�Alastair�[Willis],�Joanne�[Dodds],�and�Stephen�[Marshall]�for�your�contributions�

this�morning.�

�

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:
Summary
List
of
Actions

 

Report
to:
 Transport
Committee





Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
12
November
2014




This
report
will
be
considered
in
public��

 





1.
 Summary



�

1.1� This�report�sets�out�the�actions�arising�from�previous�meetings�of�the�Transport�Committee.�




2.
 Recommendation�


2.1� That
the
Committee
notes
the
completed
and
outstanding
actions
arising
from
previous


meetings
of
the
Committee.











Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
14
October
2014




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action



6.
 Mayor’s
London
Infrastructure
Plan
2050.



During�the�course�of�the�discussion,�the�Committee�

requested�the�following�additional�information�in�

writing:�

• Details�of�the�funding�that�the�Mini-Holland�
runner-up�boroughs�will�receive�to�improve�
cycling�in�their�localities;�and�

• Details�of�the�wider�plan�to�develop�cycling�
across�all�London�boroughs.�

The�Chair�has�written�to�

the�Mayor’s�Cycling�

Commissioner�to�

request�the�additional�

information.�

Mayor’s�Cycling�

Commissioner�


 During�the�course�of�the�discussion�the�Committee�

noted�that�the�Managing�Director,�Planning�for�

Transport�for�London�(TfL)�would�confirm�whether�

TfL’s�Transport�Innovation�Fund�submissions�on�road�

pricing�models�from�2006/07�were�available�in�the�

public�domain.


The�Chair�has�written�to�

the�Managing�Director,�

Planning,�TfL�to�request�

the�additional�

information.�

Managing�

Director,�Planning,�

TfL�



 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 51



        

Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
2
September
2014




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action



6.
 Taxi
and
Private
Hire
Services.

The�Committee�
noted�a�commitment�from�the�Deputy�Mayor�for�
Transport�to�provide�the�latest�position�on�Crossrail�
complementary�measures,�particularly�plans�for�taxi�
provision�at�stations.�

�

The�Chair�has�written�to�

the�Deputy�Mayor�for�

Transport�to�request�

the�additional�

information.�

Deputy�Mayor�for�

Transport�










Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
9
July
2014




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action



5.
 Taxi
and
Private
Hire
Services.

The�Committee�
requested�from�London�TravelWatch�details�of�any�
complaints�it�had�received�about�pedicabs.�

�

The�Chair�has�written�to�

London�TravelWatch�to�

request�the�additional�

information.�

London�

TravelWatch�







Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
5
February
2014




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action






6.
 Rail
in
London


The�Committee�requested�the�following�additional�

information�from�Network�Rail:�

• The�number�of�level�crossings�in�Greater�
London;�

• Background�information�on�the�cause�of�recent�
disruption�to�services�from�Hertford�and�Welwyn�
Garden�City�to�Moorgate;�and�

• Details�of�services�and�capacity�planned�during�
reconstruction�work�at�London�Bridge�station.





The�Chair�has�written�to�

Network�Rail�to�request�

the�additional�

information.�

Route�Managing�

Director�(London�

and�South�East),�

Network�Rail�


 The�Committee�requested�the�following�additional�

information�from�Transport�for�London�(TfL):�

• The�number�of�people�who�had�been�affected�
by�double�scanning�of�Oyster�cards�or�bank�
cards;�and�

• Details�of�the�case�that�the�Committee�can�
make�for�operating�international�services�from�
Stratford�International�station.�




The�Chair�has�written�to�

TfL�to�request�the�

additional�information.�

�

�

Director�of�

Customer�

Experience�and�

Head�of�Planning,�

TfL�

Page 52



        

Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
9
January
2014




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action






5.
 Pedestrian
Safety�

The�Committee�requested�the�following�additional�

information�from�Transport�for�London:�

• A�list�of�the�26�sites�on�the�Transport�for�
London�Road�Network�(TLRN)�where�studies�
were�underway�to�identify�appropriate�
pedestrian�safety�interventions;�

• Confirmation�on�whether�before�and�after�safety�
audits�were�undertaken�at�sites�where�the�
guardrail�was�removed;�

• Confirmation�of�whether�telephone�kiosks�were�
specifically�included�in�guidance�on�removal�of�
street�clutter�on�the�TLRN;�

The�Chair�has�written�to�

Transport�for�London�to�

request�the�additional�

information.�

Head�of�Delivery�

Planning,�Surface�

Transport,�

Transport�for�

London�


 • Confirmation�on�whether�there�was�before�and�
after�analysis�of�pedestrian�compliance�with�
signals�and�collision�rates�at�the�568�sites�where�
TfL�reduced�‘green�man�time’�since�2010�and,�if�
undertaken,�what�the�impact�had�been;�

• Details�of�the�boroughs�which�were�opposed�to�
the�introduction�of�pedestrian�countdown�at�
traffic�signals;�

• Confirmation�of�when�the�external�review�of�
TfL’s�road�safety�audit�procedures�(as�set�out�in�
the�Road�Safety�Action�Plan)�would�take�place�
and�whether�the�findings�would�be�made�public;�
and�

• Details�of�any�evaluation�of�the�impact�of�
Operation�Safeway�and�confirmation�of�how�TfL�
would�use�the�evaluation�to�inform�its�future�
work�on�pedestrian�safety.�

� �







Action
arising
from
the
Committee
meeting
on
10
December
2013




Item
 Topic
 Status
 For
Action






6.
 Cycling
in
London�

The�Committee�requested�further�information�from�

TfL�on�its�criteria�for�determining�when�to�install�20�

mile�per�hour�limits�on�its�road�network.��

The�Chair�has�written�to�

Transport�for�London�to�

request�the�additional�

information.�

Chief�Operating�

Officer,��

Surface�Transport,�

Transport�for�

London�







Page 53



        

3.
 Legal
Implications




3.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�

�

�

4.
 Financial
Implications

�

4.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:


None�

�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

�

Contact�Officer:� Dale�Langford,�Principal�Committee�Manager�
Telephone:� 020�7983�4415�

E-mail:� dale.langford@london.gov.uk�

Page 54



 

                                                                      

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:
Action
Taken
Under
Delegated

Authority


 

Report
to:
 Transport
Committee





Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
12
November
2014




This
report
will
be
considered
in
public 






1.
 Summary



�

1.1� This�report�sets�out�recent�action�taken�by�the�Chair�under�delegated�authority.�





2.
 Recommendation�


2.1� That
the
Committee
notes
the
action
taken
by
the
Chair
under
delegated
authority,


namely
to
agree,
in
consultation
with
party
Group
Lead
Members,
responses
to


consultations
on
the
Transport
Select
Committee
Inquiry
into
small
airports,
London

Airspace
Management
Programme
and
London
Overground
extension
to
Barking


Riverside.

�
�

3.
 Background




3.1� Under�Standing�Orders�and�the�Assembly’s�Scheme�of�Delegation,�certain�decisions�by�Members�can�

be�taken�under�delegated�authority.�This�report�details�those�actions.��
�

3.2 The�Transport�Committee,�on�16�September�2004�resolved:��

 

That�the�Committee�delegate�a�general�authority�to�the�Chair,�following�consultation�with�the�

lead�Members�of�the�party�groups�on�the�Committee,�to�respond�on�its�behalf�where�it�is�

consulted�on�issues�by�organisations�and�there�is�insufficient�time�to�consider�the�consultation�

at�a�Committee�meeting.�

�

3.3 The�Transport�Committee�on�14�October�2014�resolved:�

��

That�authority�be�delegated�to�the�Chair�to�agree,�in�consultation�with�Party�Group�Lead�

Members,�responses�to�Transport�for�London�consultations�on�Cycle�Superhighways,�the�

proposed�extension�of�London�Overground�to�Barking�Riverside�and�the�proposed�Bakerloo�

line�extension.�

Agenda Item 5

Page 55



        

3.4 The�House�of�Commons�Transport�Select�Committee�has�launched�an�inquiry�to�examine�policy�and�

make�recommendations�to�the�Government�on�the�role�of�smaller�airports.1�

��

3.5 London�City�Airport�has�launched�a�consultation�on�the�London�Airspace�Management�Programme,�

which�set�out
proposals�to�revise�the�airport’s�flight�paths�to�allow�for�the�use�of�Area�Navigation.�

The�closing�date�for�the�consultation�is�27�November�2014.2��
 

3.6 Transport�for�London�has�published�a�consultation�on�a�proposed�extension�of�London�Overground�

to�Barking�Riverside.��The�consultation�period�was�from�3�September�to�19�October�2014.3�







4.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�

4.1 The�Chair�agreed�under�delegated�authority,�in�consultation�with�party�Group�Lead�Members,�a�

response�to�the�Transport�Select�Committee’s�inquiry�on�smaller�airports,�attached�at�Appendix
1.�

��

4.2 The�Chair�agreed�under�delegated�authority,�in�consultation�with�party�Group�Lead�Members,�a�joint�

response�with�the�Chair�of�the�Environment�Committee�to�London�City�Airport’s�London�Airspace�

Management�Programme�consultation,�attached�at�Appendix
2.�

�

4.3 The�Chair�agreed�under�delegated�authority,�in�consultation�with�party�Group�Lead�Members,�a�

response�to�the�Transport�for�London�consultation�on�the�proposed�extension�of�London�

Overground�to�Barking�Riverside,�attached�at�Appendix
3.��
�



5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�the�report.






6.
 Financial
Implications

�

6.1� There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�

�

�
List
of
appendices
to
this
report:


Appendix�1:�Response�to�Transport�Select�Committee�re�smaller�airports�

Appendix�2:�Response�to�consultation�on�London�City�Airport�London�Airspace�Management�Programme�
Appendix�3:�Response�to�TfL�consultation�on�London�Overground�extension�to�Barking�Riverside�

�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�
Member’s�Delegated�Authority�form�534�

Contact�Officer:� Dale�Langford,�Principal�Committee�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4415�
E-mail:� dale.langford@london.gov.uk�
 

                                                 
1�http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/transport-committee/inquiries/parliament-
2010/smaller-airports/��
2�http://www.londoncityairport.com/content/pdf/LCY-LAMP-Consultation-Document.pdf��
3�https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/london-overground/gobe��

Page 56



 
 
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM, Chair of the Transport Committee 
 

London Assembly 

City Hall 

The Queen’s Walk 

London, SE1 2AA 
 

 
 

Dear Mrs Ellman 
  
London Assembly Transport Committee’s submission to inquiry into smaller airports 
 
I am writing, on behalf of the London Assembly’s Transport Committee, to set out our response to 
the Transport Select Committee’s inquiry into smaller airports. 
 
This submission is based on our past work on aviation including our report Airport Capacity in London 
(May 2013).  A full copy of our report is available online at: http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-
assembly/london-assembly/publications/airport-capacity-in-london  
 
In our report, we stressed the role that all airports, including smaller airports, could play in meeting 
existing demand for air travel. We identified scope to use all London’s main airports, including 
Heathrow, differently. Although Heathrow is running at near full runway capacity, there is unused 
terminal capacity which could be utilised through the use of bigger planes.  There is also spare 
runway capacity at Gatwick, Stansted and Luton. In summer 2012, 12 per cent of Gatwick’s runway 
slots, 47 per cent of Stansted’s runway slots, and 51 per cent of Luton’s runway slots were not used.  
 
In addition to making better use of London’s large airports, we noted the role played by smaller 
airports in and around the capital. Some airports near London are essential for meeting business 
demand for air travel. For example, in 2011, Farnborough and Biggin Hill airports were major 
operators in business aviation handling 25,000 and 11,300 air traffic movements respectively. Biggin 
Hill airport stressed to us its focus in catering for private business travel. We have also heard that 
beyond London other regional airports, such as Birmingham, have spare capacity and could help 
relieve the burden on Heathrow.  
 
In our report, we showed that key to making better use of all airports, including smaller airports, is 
improving surface public transport access.  We found that many people prefer to use Heathrow and 
may be reluctant to use other airports because they consider these airports difficult to reach. In light 
of these findings, we called on the Airports Commission to address the issue of surface public 
transport access in its work. We are therefore supportive of the Airports Commission’s 
recommendation to the Government for a package of surface transport access improvements to make 
airports with spare capacity more attractive to airlines and passengers. Such improvements may be 
needed at all airports including smaller airports.  
 
We trust that you will take our comments into account and look forward to hearing the outcomes of 
the inquiry in due course. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM  
Chair of the Transport Committee 

24 September 2014 

Mrs Louise Ellman MP 
Chair, Transport Select Committee  
House of Commons 
London, SW1A 0AA 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�

� � London�Assembly�

������ �������������City�Hall�
� � � The�Queen’s�Walk�
� � London,�SE1�2AA�

�
�

�
� � 9�October�2014�

Dear�Mr�Collier��

�
London�Assembly�concerns�about�London�City�Airport’s�consultation�on�London�Airspace�
Management�Programme�(LAMP)�
�
We�are�writing,�on�behalf�of�the�London�Assembly�Transport�and�Environment�Committees,�to�
express�our�concern�about�the�consultation�on�proposals�to�modernise�London�City�Airport’s�flight�
paths�to�allow�for�the�use�of�Area�Navigation�(RNAV).�
�
We�are�very�concerned�that�the�proposed�changes�will�result�in�a�concentration�of�flight�paths�in�
certain�areas�of�London�but�that�London�City�Airport�is�not�actively�consulting�the�residents�of�these�
areas�so�they�are�made�aware�of�the�proposals,�and�can�offer�their�views.��
�
The�Assembly�has�many�times�highlighted�the�adverse�impact�of�aviation�noise�on�Londoners�who�
live�under�flight�paths.�This�includes�in�the�Transport�Committee’s�report�on�airport�capacity�in�
London�in�May1,�and�in�the�Environment�Committee’s�response�to�the�Government’s�consultation�on�
night�flight�regulation�in�April.2��In�light�of�our�past�work,�we�consider�it�vital�that�whenever�there�are�
proposals�relating�to�flight�paths,�Londoners�who�may�be�affected�are�made�aware�of�the�proposals�
and�their�potential�impact.�
�
We�consider�that�London�City�Airport’s�failure�to�consult�local�residents�actively�about�the�proposals�
is�a�major�shortcoming�in�the�consultation,�and�we�urge�you�to�address�it.�As�the�consultation�runs�
until�27�November�2014,�there�should�be�sufficient�time�to�contact�residents�in�the�areas�affected�
through�a�leaflet�drop�and/or�by�holding�public�meetings.�We�suggest�that�London�City�Airport�
should�now�identify�suitable�means�by�which�to�consult�the�affected�residents�on�the�proposals�and�
to�undertake�this�further�stakeholder�engagement�as�soon�as�possible.�
�
We�look�forward�to�hearing�from�you�on�how�you�will�improve�the�current�consultation�to�ensure�
residents�of�the�areas�affected�are�fully�informed�and�can�have�their�say.��In�view�of�our�concerns�
about�the�consultation�process,�we�are�also�copying�this�letter�to�the�Civil�Aviation�Authority.�
�
Yours�sincerely�

���������������������������� �
Caroline�Pidgeon�MBE�AM� � � � Stephen�Knight�AM��
Chair�of�the�Transport�Committee� � � Chair�of�the�Environment�Committee��
 

Cc:�Airspace�Business�Coordinator,�Airspace�Regulation�Group,�CAA�House,�45-59�Kingsway,�
London,�WC2B�6TE 

�������������������������������������������������
1�http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/publications/airport-capacity-in-london��
2�http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/publications/response-to-the-government-s-consultation-on-night-flights-at��

Declan�Collier�
Chief�Executive�Officer�
London�City�Airport�
City�Aviation�House��
Royal�Docks�
London,�E16�2PB�

�

Appendix 2 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61



Page 62



 

                                                                    

�
City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:�Door-to-door
Transport
Services�


Report
to:
 Transport
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
12
November
2014


This
report
will
be
considered
in
public 






1.
 Summary




1.1� This�report�provides�background�information�to�the�Transport�Committee�in�relation�to�its�meeting�

with�invited�guests�on�door-to-door�transport�services�in�London�





2.
 Recommendations�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
the
report,
puts
questions
on
door-to-door
transport
services


to
the
invited
guests
and
notes
the
discussion.






2.2 That
the
Committee
delegates
authority
to
the
Chair,
in
consultation
with
the
party
Group


Lead
Members,
to
agree
the
Committee’s
output
from
its
work
on
door-to-door
transport.









3.
 Background




3.1� The�Committee�has�agreed�to�use�this�meeting�to�explore�door-to-door�transport�services�in�London.�

�

3.2� Door-to-door�transport�services�provide�for�people�who�find�it�very�difficult�to�use�mainstream�

public�transport,�because�of�disabilities�or�health�problems,�to�make�journeys.�There�are�many�types�

of�door-to-door�transport�service�in�London,�including�Dial-a-Ride,�Taxicard�and�NHS�Patient�

Transport,�most�of�which�are�funded�in�whole�or�part�by�the�public�sector.�

�

3.3� The�Committee�has�regularly�explored�issues�with�door-to-door�transport�services.��In�2009�it�

undertook�an�investigation�into�the�performance�of�Dial-a-Ride,�a�service�both�funded�and�directly�

provided�by�Transport�for�London�(TfL),�following�many�complaints�from�Dial-a-Ride�members.�It�

subsequently�wrote�to�the�Mayor�and�TfL�setting�out�some�concerns.�A�year�later�the�Committee�

returned�to�the�issue�to�investigate�whether�the�performance�of�Dial-a-Ride�had�improved.��In�

addition�to�re-examining�Dial-a-Ride�performance�issues�in�2010,�the�Committee�also�investigated�

the�future�of�door-to-door�transport�in�light�of�London�Councils’�strategic�review�of�the�services.��

The�Committee�published�its�findings�in�its�report�Door-to-door�transport�services�(June�2010).�

�

3.4� This�year�TfL�has�indicated�some�possible�changes�to�door-to-door�transport�services�in�future.�In�

early�2014,�it�launched�a�consultation�to�withdraw�the�Capital�Call�scheme�from�April�next�year.�

Agenda Item 6

Page 63



        

Capital�Call�is�an�addition�to�the�Taxicard�scheme�and�operates�in�ten�boroughs�where�black�cabs�are�

scarce.���TfL�also�announced�that�it�would�conduct�a�review�of�door-to-door�transport�services�(or�

the�social�needs�transport�sector)�to�understand�how�demand�for�these�services�may�change�in�

future,�how�well�current�services�meet�customer�need,�and�whether�closer�working�across�services�

could�produce�benefits�for�customers.��

�

�

4.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�

4.1 The�following�guests�have�been�invited�to�attend�this�meeting�to�discuss�door-to-door�transport�

services:���

• Leon�Daniels,�Managing�Director,�Surface�Transport,�TfL;�

• Spencer�Palmer,�Director,�Transport�and�Mobility,�London�Councils;��

• Faryal�Velmi,�Director,�Transport�for�All; 

• Ewan�Jones,�Deputy�Chief�Executive,�Community�Transport�Association. 

�

4.2 The�Committee�will�be�able�to�use�the�meeting�to�explore�progress�in�improving�door-to-door�

transport�services�since�its�previous�work�and�the�future�for�these�services.�





5.
 Legal
Implications



5.1� The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.






6.
 Financial
Implications

�
6.1� There�are�no�direct�financial�implications�to�the�GLA�arising�from�this�report.�
�
�
�
List
of
appendices
to
this
report:



None.�

�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

�

Contact�Officer:� Richard�Berry,�Scrutiny�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4199�

E-mail:� richard.berry@london.gov.uk���

�

Page 64



 

                                                                      

City�Hall,�The�Queen’s�Walk,�London�SE1�2AA�
Enquiries:
020
7983
4100
minicom:
020
7983
4458
www.london.gov.uk


 

Subject:�Transport
Committee
Work
Programme�

Report
to:
 Transport
Committee




Report
of:

Executive
Director
of
Secretariat 



Date:
12
November
2014�



This
report
will
be
considered
in
public�
 



1.
 Summary



�
1.1 This�report�sets�out�the�work�programme�for�2014/15.�





2.
 Recommendations�


2.1 That
the
Committee
notes
its
work
programme
for
2014/15,
as
set
out
in
this
report.




2.2 That
the
Committee
delegates
authority
to
the
Chair
to
agree,
in
consultation
with
party


Group
Lead
Members,
a
response
to
Network
Rail’s
consultation
on
the
draft
South
East


Route:
Sussex
Area
Route
Study.







3.
 Background





3.1 The�Committee�receives�a�report�monitoring�the�progress�of�its�work�programme�at�each�meeting.��

�

��
4.
 Issues
for
Consideration�

�
4.1 The�table�below�sets�out�the�scheduled�dates�of�the�Committee’s�meetings�in�2014/15�and�lists�the�

main�topic�proposed�for�each�meeting�at�this�stage.��The�topics�for�future�meetings�are�subject�to�
change�as�the�Committee�develops�proposals�for�its�work.��The�work�programme�also�provides�for�

the�Committee�to�respond�to�any�matters�that�arise�at�short�notice.   �

 

Transport
Committee
meeting
date




Proposed
topic(s)


Wednesday�10�December�2014� Cycling���

Wednesday�14�January�2015� Crossrail�and�Crossrail�2�

Wednesday�25�February�2015� Q&A�with�TfL�

Wednesday�18�March�2015� Future�ticketing�

�








Agenda Item 7

Page 65



        

Topics
identified
for
the
work
programme


4.2 The�following�paragraphs�provide�further�details�of�the�main�topics�that�the�Committee�has�

identified�for�2014/15.��The�Committee�has�a�rolling�work�programme�so�it�is�always�possible�for�

some�topics�to�be�explored�in�subsequent�years.�
�

Future
of
the
Tube


4.3 The�Committee�used�its�meeting�in�June�2014�to�explore�the�future�of�the�Tube�including:�recent�
progress�with�Tube�upgrades�and�the�future�milestones;�the�performance�of�the�Tube;�and�proposals�

for�the�Tube�to�run�at�night�from�autumn�2015.�The�Committee�followed�up�this�meeting�with�a�site�

visit�in�July�and�a�video�conference�call�with�the�New�York�City�Transit�in�August�to�identify�any�
lessons�London�could�learn�from�the�operation�and�upgrade�of�the�subway�in�New�York.��The�

Committee�published�its�findings�from�this�work,�in�the�form�of�a�letter�to�the�Mayor,�in�October�

2014.��
�

Taxi
and
private
hire



4.4 The�Committee�used�its�meetings�in�July�and�September�2014�to�gather�evidence�for�its�
investigation�into�taxi�and�private�hire�services�in�London.��The�Committee�has�also�commissioned�

surveys�of�taxi�and�private�hire�users�and�drivers,�obtained�written�submissions,�undertaken�a�site�

visit,�and�held�a�separate�meeting�with�taxi�and�private�hire�stakeholders�to�obtain�further�views�and�
information.��The�Committee�is�now�producing�its�report�setting�out�its�findings�and�

recommendations�on�taxi�and�private�hire�services.��

�
Mayor’s
2050
Infrastructure
Plan


4.5 The�Committee�used�its�meeting�in�October�to�explore�the�transport�aspects�of�the�Mayor’s�draft�

2050�Infrastructure�Plan.�The�Committee�has�subsequently�produced�a�response�to�the�consultation�

on�the�draft�2050�Infrastructure�Plan.��

 

Door-to-door
transport


4.6 The�Committee�is�using�this�meeting�to�explore�the�current�operation�of�Dial-a-Ride�and�other�

door-to-door�transport�services�and�the�future�developments�for�these�services.�This�is�the�subject�

of�a�separate�item�on�the�agenda�for�this�meeting.�

 

Cycling

4.7 It�is�proposed�that�the�Committee�explores�progress�in�improving�cycling�in�London�at�its�December�

meeting.��This�consideration�of�cycling�will�provide�an�opportunity�to�follow�up�the�Committee’s�past�

work�on�cyclists’�safety�including�its�reports�Gearing�Up�(November�2012)�and�Cycling�in�London�–�
an�update�(February�2014)�and�its�discussion�about�recent�developments�with�cycling�projects�at�its�

last�meeting.��

�
4.8 The�Committee�responded�to�TfL’s�consultations�on�the�draft�cycle�safety�action�plan�and�draft�

London�Cycling�Design�Standards�in�July�2014.��The�Committee�is�also�responding�to�TfL’s�

consultations�on�the�proposals�for�new�north-south�and�east-west�Superhighways�and�upgrades�to�
existing�Cycle�Superhighway�2.�



Crossrail


4.9 It�is�proposed�that�the�Committee�explores�progress�with�Crossrail�at�its�meeting�in�January�2015.�
The�Committee�has�checked�on�progress�with�the�development�of�Crossrail�each�year�since�it�

published�its�report�on�Crossrail�in�February�2010.���



Future
ticketing


4.10 It�is�proposed�that�the�Committee�could�also�explore�future�ticketing�arrangements�at�its�meeting�in�

January�2015.�TfL�introduced�contactless�bankcard�payment�on�buses�in�July�and�on�other�modes�in�

Page 66



        

September�2014.�This�meeting�will�provide�an�opportunity�for�the�Committee�to�follow�up�its�past�

work�on�ticketing�including�its�report�The�Future�of�Ticketing�(November�2011).�

�
High
Speed2
and
Crossrail
2


4.11 The�Committee�may�explore�progress�with�High�Speed�2�(HS2)�and�Crossrail�2�at�a�meeting�in�

2014/15.�The�Committee�has�responded�to�consultations�on�HS2�in�the�past.�The�Committee�

responded�to�TfL’s�consultation�on�Crossrail�2�in�July�2014.��
�

Rail
issues



4.12 The�Committee�might�explore�a�range�of�rail�issues�at�a�meeting�in�2014/15.�These�may�include�
overcrowding,�punctuality�and�the�reliability�of�train�services�serving�London�and�the�capital’s�rail�

infrastructure�compared�to�the�rest�of�the�UK.�It�may�also�cover�progress�with�upgrading�London�

Overground�and�the�Mayor’s�aspirations�to�secure�more�control�of�London’s�suburban�rail�services.��
�

4.13 Following�Lead�Members�meeting�representatives�of�Network�Rail,�Southern�and�London�

TravelWatch�on�9�July�2014,�the�Transport�Committee�wrote�to�Network�Rail�and�Southern�about�
issues�at�London�Bridge�station�including�delays�in�hot�weather.��Network�Rail�and�Southern�

responded�to�the�Committee’s�letter�positively.��The�Committee�will�continue�to�keep�the�

redevelopment�of�London�Bridge�station�under�review.�
�

Question
and
answer
session
with
TfL


4.14 It�is�proposed�that�the�Committee�uses�its�meeting�in�February�2015�for�a�question�and�answer�

session�with�the�Commissioner�of�TfL.�These�sessions�provide�an�opportunity�to�explore�a�range�of�
transport�issues,�TfL�Board�and�Committee�discussions�and�decisions,�and�follow�up�topics�which�the�

Committee�has�covered�in�its�past�reports�and�recommendations.�

�
Rapporteurship
on
TfL
customer
service


4.15 The�GLA�Oversight�Committee�agreed�on�23�July�2014�to�appoint�Valerie�Shawcross�CBE�AM�as�

rapporteur�to�follow�up�her�previous�investigation�into�TfL’s�customer�service�(January�2012).�This�
investigation�is�focusing�on�TfL’s�progress�in�improving�its�customer�service�including�in�developing�

a�single�customer�charter.1�The�rapporteur�is�gathering�views�and�information�for�this�investigation.��



Responses
to
transport-related
consultations


4.16 The�Committee�recently�responded�to�TfL’s�consultation�on�a�proposed�extension�of�the�London�

Overground�to�Barking�Riverside.��The�Committee�will�also�be�responding�to�TfL’s�current�
consultation�on�the�proposed�extension�of�the�Bakerloo�line�south�from�Elephant�&�Castle.�

�

4.17 The�Committee�may�wish�to�respond�to�Network�Rail’s�current�consultation�on�South�East�Route:�
Sussex�Area�Route�Study�which�sets�out�the�strategic�vision�over�the�next�thirty�years�for�various�rail�

services�including�the�suburban�network�of�radial�rail�routes�in�south�central�inner�and�outer�London�

and�the�orbital�routes�of�the�west�and�east�London�lines.�The�deadline�for�responding�to�this�
consultation�is�13�January�2015.�It�is�proposed�that�the�Committee�delegate�authority�to�the�Chair�

to�agree�any�Committee�responses�in�consultation�with�Party�Group�Lead�Members.��





















                                                 
1�Full�report�at:�http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Customer%20Service%20Report%20-%20FINAL%20DRAFT.pdf��

Page 67



        

Other
possible
topics



4.18 Members�have�suggested�a�range�of�other�possible�topics�for�the�Transport�Committee’s�work�

programme.�These�include:��

• Freight�transport�issues.�

• Progress�in�addressing�congestion�on�Oxford�Street.��This�may�be�covered�at�a�meeting�outside�
the�formal�schedule�of�Committee�meetings.��

• Fly-unders�on�London’s�road�network.���



Responses
to
recent
Transport
Committee
work�
4.19 This�section�of�the�work�programme�provides�details�of�any�responses�due�from�the�Mayor,�TfL�

and/or�others�to�Committee�work.��

�
�

�

�





5.
 Legal
Implications




5.1 The�Committee�has�the�power�to�do�what�is�recommended�in�this�report.�

�
�

6.
 Financial
Implications�


6.1 There�are�no�financial�implications�arising�from�this�report.�

�

List
of
appendices
to
this
report:
�
None�
�

Local
Government
(Access
to
Information)
Act
1985


List�of�Background�Papers:�None�

Contact�Officer:� Richard�Berry,�Scrutiny�Manager�

Telephone:� 020�7983�4199�
Email:� richard.berry@london.gov.uk�

�

Transport
Committee
work
 Details
of
responses
due
(if
appropriate)


The�Future�of�the�Tube�(October�2014)�

�

The�Committee�requested�a�response�from�the�

Mayor�and/or�TfL�on�23�October�2014.�

Page 68


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Minutes
	Minutes - Appendix 1 - Transcript (Andrew Gilligan)
	Minutes - Appendix 2 - Transcript (Infrastructure Plan - Other Guests)

	4 Summary List of Actions
	5 Action Taken Under Delegated Authority
	Appendix 1 - Letter to Transport Select Committee re Smaller Airports
	Appendix 2 - Joint Transport-Environment Letter to London City Airport
	Appendix 3 - Response to Consultation on Overground Extension to Barking Riverside

	6 Door-to-door Transport Services
	7 Transport Committee Work Programme

